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89TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ON 28TH SEPTEMBER, 2023 
 

Message from Chairman 
 

Dear Shareholders, 

 

I sincerely thank you everyone for coming to our 

company's 89th Annual General Meeting. It is always a 

pleasure to interact with you all, and having you here 

today—even though it is only virtually—is an honour. I 

appreciate your continuous confidence in the Company and 

its Management as well as your encouragement and 

unwavering support.  

 

The fact that our company is growing stronger, healthier, 

and reaching new heights is extremely admirable. I do have 

complete faith in our team's hard work and commitment. 

We are reliving the past's glories while we advance to a 

magnificent and affluent future. 

 

 

Our stakeholders' faith and confidence, especially yours, our valued shareholders, have been 

critical fuel in our never-ending journey of steady growth and improvement. I am grateful to each 

of you, customers, employees, partners, shareholders, suppliers, lenders, and the community at 

large, for your ongoing support. 

 
Thank you very much. 

 

GAUTAM CHANDRAKUMAR SHAH 

Chairman  

DIN – 00271794 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 
CIN: L74900MH1948PLC006791 

Registered Office: CLUB EMERALD SPORTS COMPLEX, PLOT NO. 366/15, SWASTIK PARK, NEAR MANGAL ANAND HOSPITAL, 

CHEMBUR, MUMBAI CITY MH 400071 
Tel No: 022-25277504; email: info@clubemerald.in; Website: www.clubemerald.in  

 

NOTICE  

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighty Ninth (89th) Annual General Meeting of the Members of EMERALD 

LEISURES LIMITED (Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) will be held on Thursday, 28th 

September, 2023 at 11.30 A.M through Video Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) to transact 

the following business:-  

ORDNARY BUSINESS: 

1. ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTS: 

To receive, consider and adopt the standalone audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; 
  
 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are 
hereby considered and adopted.”  
 
2. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF RETIRING DIRECTOR BY ROTATION: 

To recommend to members for re-appointment of Ms. Dhwani Mehta, (DIN: - 00235845) Director, who is retiring by 
rotation and being eligible offered herself for re-appointment, and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to 
pass the following resolutions with or without modifications, if any as Ordinary Resolutions: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT Ms. Dhwani Mehta, (DIN:- 00235845) Director of the Company, who retires by rotation at this 
89th Annual General Meeting and being eligible offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as 
a Director of the Company and that her period of office be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by 
rotation." 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. TO REGULARIZE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. NIKHIL MEHTA (DIN: 00252482) AS EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, if any, the following resolution as a 

Ordinary Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of section 152 and 160 of the companies Act, 2013 and the rules 

framed hereunder, as amended from time to time, Mr. Nikhil Mehta (DIN: 00252482) who was appointed as 

additional director of the company under section 161 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 28th October, 2022 

and who has consented in writing to act as a director of the company, be and is hereby appointed as an executive 

director of the company on such terms and conditions including remuneration with further liberty to the Board of 

Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any 

Committee constituted / to be constituted by the Board) and remuneration as approved by Board, whose office is 

liable to be retired by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the directors of the Company, be and is hereby severally authorized to file 

necessary returns/forms to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and things that may be 

necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 

mailto:info@clubemerald.in
http://www.clubemerald.in/
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NOTES: 

1. Pursuant to General Circulars No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 

No.22/2020 dated June15, 2020, No. 33/2020 dated September28, 2020, No. 39/2020 dated December 

31, 2020 read with other relevant circulars, including General Circulars No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 

2021, No. 20/2021 dated December 8, 2021, No. 03/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and No. 11/2022 dated 

December 28th, 2022.The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the MCA) has, vide its circular dated 28th 

December, 2022 read with relevant circulars issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (the 

SEBI) has permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM/ Meeting) through Video 

Conferencing (“VC”) or other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the 

Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) 

and MCA Circulars, the 89th Annual General Meeting (the AGM) of the Company is being held through 

VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at Plot 

No.366/15, Club Emerald Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra, 400071. 

 

2. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, in regard to the business as set 

out in Item Nos. 3 and 4 above and the relevant details of the Directors seeking re-appointment under 

Item Nos. 2 and 4 above, as required by Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and as required 

under Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India, are annexed hereto. 

 

3. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH 
VC/OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN 
DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY 
MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE, THE PROXY FORM, 
ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. 

 

4. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder, who is higher in the order of 
names, will be entitled to vote. 

 

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

6. The Members can join the AGM through VC/OAVM 30 minutes before and within 15 minutes after 

the scheduled time of the commencement of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in the 

Notice. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on National Securities Depository 

Limited’s (NSDL) e-Voting website at www.evoting.nsdl.comThe facility of participation at the AGM 

through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1,000 Members on a first come first served 

basis as per the MCA Circulars. 

 

7. In terms of the MCA Circulars and the relevant SEBI Circulars, the Company is sending this AGM 

Notice along with the Integrated Annual Report for FY 2023 in electronic form only to those Members 

whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depositories. The Company shall send the 

physical copy of the Integrated Annual Report for FY 2023 only to those Members who specifically 

request for the same at info@clubemerald.in mentioning their Folio No/DP ID and Client ID. The 

Notice convening the AGM and the Annual Report for FY 2023 have been uploaded on the website of 

the Company at www.clubemerald.in  and may also be accessed from the relevant section on the 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:info@clubemerald.in
http://www.clubemerald.in/
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websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited (BSE) at www.bseindia.comThe AGM Notice is also 

available on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

8. Book Closure: The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from Friday, September 22, 2023 to Thursday, September 28, 2023 (both days inclusive) for the 
purpose of AGM for FY 2023. 

 

9. In terms of Regulation 40(1) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can 
be transferred only in dematerialised form with effect from April 1, 2019. Members may please note 
that SEBI, vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 
25, 2022, has mandated Listed Companies to issue securities in demat form only while processing 
service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; 
Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate; Endorsement; Sub-division/Splitting of securities 
certificate; Consolidation of securities certificates/folios; Transmission and Transposition. 
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed 
Form ISR–4, the format of which is available on the Company’s website at www.clubemerald.in and 
on the website of the Company’s RTA at www.purvashare.com. It may be noted that any service 
request can be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant. SEBI, vide its notification dated 
January 24, 2022, has mandated that all requests for transmission and transposition shall be processed 
only in dematerialised form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical 
shares and avail various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised to dematerialise the 
shares held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or RTA, for assistance in 
this regard. 

 

10. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 
Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also 
advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should 
be obtained from the concerned DP and holdings should be verified from time to time. 

 

11. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available to the 
Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 
nomination, are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to 
opt-out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, the Member may submit the 
same in form ISR-3 or form SH-14, as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded from the 
Company’s website www.clubemerald.in. Members are requested to submit the said form to their 
respective DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form, and to the RTA in case the shares are 
held in physical form. 

 

12. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with ‘The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 electronic copy of the Annual Report for financial year 2022-2023 along with Notice of 89th 
Annual General Meeting of the company (including the Attendance Slip & Proxy Form) is being sent 
to all the members whose email id is registered with the Registrar/Depository Participant(s). 
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for 2022-2023 will also be available on the 
Company’s website at www.clubemerald.in website of the stock exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com. 

 

13. Members desiring inspection of statutory registers during the AGM or who wish to inspect the 
relevant documents referred to in the Notice, can send their request on email to info@clubemerald.in 

 

14. To receive communications through electronic means, including Annual Reports and Notices, 
members are requested to kindly register/update their email address with their respective depository 
participant, where shares are held in electronic form. In case of shares held in physical form, members 
are advised to register their e-mail address with Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. Members may 
also note that the Notice of the 43rdAnnual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2022-2023 will 
also be available on the Company’s website www.clubemerald.in, which can be downloaded from 
the site. 

http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.bseindia.com/
mailto:info@clubemerald.in
http://www.clubemerald.in/
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15. Norms for furnishing of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination: Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSDPoD-1/P/ CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023, issued in supersession of 
earlier circulars issued by SEBI bearing nos. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB /P/CIR/2021/655 
and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD RTAMB/ P/CIR/2021/687 dated November 3, 2021 and December 
14, 2021, respectively, SEBI has mandated all listed companies to record PAN, Nomination, Contact 
details, Bank A/c details and Specimen signature for their corresponding folio numbers of holders of 
physical securities. The folios wherein any one of the cited documents/details is not available on or 
after October 1, 2023, shall be frozen by the RTA. The securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible: • 
To lodge any grievance or avail of any service, only after furnishing the complete documents / details 
as mentioned above; • To receive any payment including dividend, interest or redemption amount 
(which would be only through electronic mode) only after they comply with the above stated 
requirements. The forms for Updation of PAN, KYC, bank details and Nomination viz., Forms ISR-1, 
ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13 and the said SEBI circular are available on our website www.clubemerald.in. In 
view of the above, we urge Members holding shares in physical form to submit the required forms 
along with the supporting documents at the earliest. The Company is in the process of despatching a 
letter to the Members holding shares in physical form in relation to the above referred SEBI Circular. 
Members who hold shares in dematerialised form and wish to update their PAN, KYC,Bank details 
and Nomination, are requested to contact their respective DPs. Further, Shareholders holding shares 
in physical form are requested to ensure that their PAN is linked to Aadhar to avoid freezing of 
folios. Such frozen folios shall be referred by RTA/Company to the administering authority under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and/or Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002, 
after December 31, 2025. 

 
16. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as 

per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the e-AGM. 
 

17. For ease of conduct, members who would like to ask questions/express their views on the items of 
the businesses to be transacted at the meeting can send in their questions/comments in advance by 
sending an email at info@clubemerald.in and mark cc to support@purvashare.com 'Post your 
Queries' during the period starting from 17th September, 2023 (9.00 a.m.) up to 22th September, 2023 
(5.00 p.m.) mentioning their name, demat account no./Folio no., e-mail Id, mobile number, etc. The 
queries may be raised precisely and in brief to enable the Company to answer the same suitably 
depending on the availability of time at the meeting. 

 
18. Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, the route map is not annexed to this 

Notice. 
 

19. In case a person becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of e-AGM Notice, and is a 

member as on the cut-off date for e-voting, i.e., Friday, 22nd September, 2023, such person may obtain 

the user id and password from RTA by email request on support@purvashare.com 

 

20. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for commencement of the meeting and 

ending with the conclusion of the meeting, members would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, 

at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided not less than 3 days’ written notice 

is given to the Company. 
 

21. Brief details of the Directors, who are seeking appointment / re-appointment, are annexed hereto as 

per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation, 2015. 
 

22. Members holding the equity shares under multiple folios in identical order of names are requested to 

consolidate their holdings into one folio. 

 

http://www.clubemerald.in/
mailto:info@clubemerald.in
mailto:support@purvashare.com
mailto:support@purvashare.com
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23. Those Members who have already registered their email IDs are requested to keep the same validated 

with their DP/RTA to enable serving ofnotices/documents/Annual Reports and other 

communications electronically to their email ID in future. 

 

24. Process and manner for Members opting for e-Voting is as under: 
 

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 in relation to e-Voting 
facility provided by listed entities, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its 
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. The Company has engaged the 
services of NSDL for facilitating e-Voting to enable the Members to cast their votes electronically as 
well as for e-Voting during the AGM. Resolution(s) passed by Members through e-Voting is/are 
deemed to have been passed as if it/they have been passed at the AGM. 

 
II. Members are provided with the facility for voting through electronic voting system during the 

VC/OAVM proceedings at the AGM and Members participating at the AGM, who have not already 
cast their vote by remote e-Voting, are eligible to exercise their right to vote at the AGM. 

 

III.Members who have already cast their vote by remote e-Voting prior to the AGM, will also be eligible 
to participate at the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again on such resolution(s) for 
which the Member has already cast the vote through remote e-Voting. 

 

IV.The instructions for Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under: 
 
Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or electronic form, as on the cut-
off date of Friday, September 22, 2023, may cast their vote by remote e-Voting. The remote e-
Voting period commences on Monday, September 25, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on 
Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled 
by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member 
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. The voting right of Members shall be in 
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being Friday, September 22nd 2023. 

 

 
 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?  

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode  

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process and in pursuance of SEBI circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, e-Voting facility is being provided to all the 

demat account holders, by way of single login credential, through their demat accounts/websites of 

Depositories/Depository Participants. Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without 

having to register again with the e-voting service provider (‘ESP’) thereby not only facilitatingseamless 

authentication but also ease and convenience of participating in e-Voting process. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email ID in their demat accounts in order to access 

e-voting facility. 

Log-in method for Individual Members holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

Type of Members  Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and 

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The 
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holding securities 

in Demat mode 

with CDSL 

users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon 

& New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies 

where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN 

No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 

user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 

authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 

directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing 

User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 

Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 

e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-

directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period Ifyou are 

not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

2) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 

e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 

section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 

account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3) Shareholders /Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the 

QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities 

in demat mode) 

login through their 

Depository 

Participants 

 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 

Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to 

see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 

Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website 

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Login Method Helpdesk details 

Individual Members holding securities in Demat 

mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor 

contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

Individual Members holding securities in Demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 022 - 

4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

 
B). Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.comeither on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. 
 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.comwith your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 
4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID for example if your DP ID is 
IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

 

For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID for example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 

your user ID is 12**************. 
 

For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company for 
example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001***. 

  

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
 

a). If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 
vote. 

 
b). If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

 
c). How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

  
i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is 
your 8-digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 
 

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered. 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the 'Initial password' or have forgotten your password: 
 

a. Click on 'Forgot User Details/Password?'(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

b. 'Physical User Reset Password?' (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

c. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 
registered address, etc. 

 

d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to 'Terms and Conditions' by selecting on the check box. 
 

8. Now, you will have to click on 'Login' button. 
 

9. After you click on the 'Login' button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies 'EVEN' in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
 

2. Select 'EVEN' of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/ 
OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page. 

 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 
 

General Guidelines for Members: 
 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail vrp.cs.in@gmail.com   
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 
can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload 
Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 
 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password. 

 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:vrp.cs.in@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
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3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 
no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Soni Singh at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email IDs are not registered with the Depositories for 
procuring user ID and password and registration of e mail IDs for e-Voting for the resolutions 
set out in this notice:  
 

i. In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), self-attested scanned copy of PAN card, self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar card by email to evoting@nsdl.co.in 
 

ii. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
info@clubemerald.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you 
are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and 
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

iii. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id 
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

iv. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility. 

 

V. A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register ofBeneficial Owners 
maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of 
remote e-Voting, as well as voting at the meeting. 
 

VI. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual Members, who acquire shares of 
the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding 
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September22, 2023 may obtain the login ID and password by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 

However, if the person is already registered with NSDL for remote e-Voting, then the existing user 
ID and password of the said person can be used for casting vote. If the person forgot his/her 
password, the same can be reset by using 'Forgot user Details/Password' or 'Physical user Reset 
Password' option available at www.evoting.nsdl.comor by calling on 022 4886 7000 and 022 2499 
7000. In case of Individual Members holding securities in Demat mode who acquire shares of the 
Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending the Notice and holding shares as of 
the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 22, 2023 may follow steps mentioned in the notes to Notice 
under 'Access to NSDL e-Voting system' 

 

VII. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Vineet Pal (Mem. No.25565, CP 13149), Practicing 
Company Secretary, and Proprietor of M/s Vineet Pal & Associates as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 
voting at the AGM and remote e-Voting process, in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

VIII. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be 
held, allow voting, by use of remote e-Voting system for all those Members who are present during 
the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-Voting facility. The remote e-Voting 
module during the AGM shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 15 minutes after the conclusion of 
the Meeting. 

 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:info@clubemerald.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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IX. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the 
Meeting and, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting, in the presence of at least 
two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than two working 
days from the conclusion of the AGM, a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
 

X. The Results declared, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall be placed on the Company’s website 
info@clubemerald.in and on the website of NSDLwww.evoting.nsdl.com, and the results shall also 
be displayed on the notice board at the Registered Office of the Company, immediately after the 
declaration of the result by the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing. The results shall 
also be immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s Equity Shares are 
listed viz. BSE websites viz. www.bseindia.com. 

 

 
By order of the Board of Directors 
For Emerald Leisures Limited 

 
 

Rajesh Motilal Loya 
Director 
DIN: 00252470 
 

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:    
 

Registered Office: 
Club Emerald Sports Complex,  
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  
Near Mangal Anand Hospital, 
Chembur, Mumbai – 400071 
 
 
CIN: L74900MH1948PLC006791  
Website: www.clubemerald.in           
Email: info@clubemerald.in                 
Tel:-  022-25277504              
 
Date:  4th September, 2023     
Place: Mumbai  

mailto:info@clubemerald.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
mailto:info@clubemerald.in
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE: 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 

ITEM NO. 3 
 

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 4th 
September, 2023 approved the appointment of Mr. Nikhil Mehta (DIN: 00252482), as an Additional Director designated 
as Executive Director, w.e.f. 28th October, 2022 subject to approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.  
 
Pursuant to Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014, and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, the appointment of Mr. Nikhil Mehta (DIN: 
00252482),  requires approval of the Members by way of ordinary resolution. The terms and conditions of the re-
appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Nikhil Mehta is provided in the resolution referred in Item No. 3 
respectively. 
 
The Company has received from Mr Mr. Nikhil Mehta (DIN: 00252482) (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form 
DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014; (ii) intimation in 
Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect 
that he is not disqualified in accordance with sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act. In terms of Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received notice in writing from a member, proposing the candidature of Mr. 
Nikhil Mehta (DIN: 00252482) for appointment.   
 
Both the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board were of the opinion, after evaluation of his 
qualifications, experience and other attributes, that his induction on the Board would be of immense benefit to the 
Company and it is desirable to avail his services as a Director to strengthen the management of the Company.  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, therefore, recommends passing of the resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of the 
Notice above by way of ordinary resolution. Except Mr. Nikhil Mehta (DIN: 00252482), none of the Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way, concerned or interested in the said resolution. 
 
 
 
 
Registered Office:                            By Order of the Board of Directors 
Club Emerald Sports Complex,                            Emerald Leisures Limited 
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,                            (Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”)   
Near MangalAnand Hospital,   
Chembur, Mumbai – 400071   SD/- 
CIN: L74900MH1948PLC006791               MR. Rajesh M. Loya 

            Whole Time Director                

Website: www.clubemerald.in                DIN No. 00252470      

Email: info@clubemerald.in                

Tel:- 022-25277504              
 
Date:  4th September, 2023     
Place: Mumbai  

  

http://www.clubemerald.in/
mailto:info@clubemerald.in
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Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the 
brief profile of Directors eligible for re-appointment/Appointment at the 89th Annual General Meeting 
 

Directors Name 
 

Ms. Dhwani Jaydeep Mehta 

DIN 00235845 

Designation/category of 
Directorship 

Non-Executive Director 

Date of Birth 14/07/1992 

PAN AYQPM5404Q 

Nationality Indian 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

13/02/2015 

Terms and Conditions of 

appointment / re-appointment 

Re-appointment in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 

No. of Equity Shares held 0 

Qualifications B.Com, ACA 

Experience/Brief Profile Ms. Dhwani Mehta is a Finance professional having vast experience of finance. She 
looks after the finance part of the company. 

Other Companies in which 

he/she is a Director excluding 

Section 8 companies and Private 

Companies  

NA  

Chairperson/ Membership of the 

Statutory Committee(s) of Board 

of Directors of the Company  

NA  
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BOARD’S REPORT 

To,  
The Members, 
 
The Board of Directors hereby submits the 89th Annual report of the business and operations of the Company 
together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31st, 2023. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

Particulars F Y 2023  

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

F Y 2022 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Revenue from Operation 1475.37 857.00 

Revenue from other Income 13.21 15.10 

Total Revenue 1488.59 872.10 

Profit before Dep. & Int. (687.64) (895.85) 

Less: Depreciation & Amortization 309.35 335.41 

Profit after Depreciation & Interest and before Tax (996.99) (1231.26) 

Tax Expenses  17.21 0.00 

Profit/ Loss after Tax from continuing operations (1014.20) (1231.26) 

 
The company continues to be engaged in Hospitality (Hotels & Resort) Business. 

The bottom line has shown Profit & Loss (after tax) for the year ended 31.03.2023 Rs. -1014.20 Lakhs as compared to 
the previous year 2021-22 Profit & Loss Rs. -1231.26 Lakhs i.e. the Company has decreased the loss from previous 
years by 17.63%. Further, there are no significant and material events impacting the going concern status and 
Company’s operations in future. 
 
OPERATIONS FOR THE PERIOD AND FUTURE OUTLOOK: 
 

(i)  OPERATIONS FOR THE PERIOD:  
 

Post COVID-19, the operations of the Company for FY 22-23revived & took turn for the better, consequent to 
removal of travel restrictions, improved mobility and release of pent up demand for domestic tourism. Total Income 
for FY 22-23 was Rs.14.89crores, higher than the previous year’s Total Income of Rs.8.72crores by 70.75%. Operating 
Expenditure increased by 38.60% to Rs.9.09crores in FY 22-23 from Rs.6.55crores in the previous FY. The increase in 
revenues was mainly due to healthy increase in business volumes, speciallyroom revenues aided by better ARR & 
higher occupancy. The operational costs remained well within control due to better operational efficiencies.  The 
Company reported net loss of Rs.10.14crores for FY 22-23 as compared to net loss of Rs.12.31crores for FY 21-22. 

 
(ii) FUTURE OUTLOOK: 
 
An analysis of the financial results is given in the Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of the 

Annual report. 

The Company is working hard to develop alternate revenue streams. The Management is taking all efforts to keep 

the facilities in good condition and retain the team. The Management is committed to take all such measures that 

will strengthen the Company and its’ operations in years to come. The Management wishes to place on record the 

fact that, the company has still not received approvals for future construction of certain facilities, for which the 

Company is consistently pursuing with the appropriate authorities and is hopeful of some positive development 

in time to come.The business of the company is largely dependent on the overall economic growth and general 

business sentiment prevalent in the market. However, the Management is positive in its’ outlook and is confident 

of generating better revenues in future. 
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The Company has successfully managed to meet its financial commitments in spite of challenging scenario. The 
company is also looking closely to various business opportunities which will help the Company to garner more 
business strengthen its operations & financial position. 
 
DIVIDEND: 

 

The Chairman informed the Board that in view of current year losses and accumulated losses it would be prudent, 
not to recommend payment of dividend on Equity Share Capital of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2023. The Board after discussion on the matter, decided not to recommend any dividend on Equity Share 
Capital of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 

 
REVENUE: 

 

The Company has earned gross revenue of Rs.1488.59 lakhs in FY 22-23 under review as compared to Rs.872.10 lakhs in FY 21-
22. The Company has a EBITDA of Rs.580.11 lakhsas compared to EBITDA of Rs.216.68 in FY 21-22 &negative PAT (loss)of 
Rs.1014.20 lakhs as compared to Rs.1231.26 lakhs in FY21-22. 

 
AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES: 
 
In view of the current year’s losses the Board of the Company does not recommend transfer of any amount to reserves. 

 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
 

Authorized share Capital 

There is no change in Authorized share capital of the company for the Financial Year 2022-2023. 

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes 

to the financial statements provided in the Annual Report. 

The Register of Loan, Guarantee, Security and Investment is maintained in Form MBP-2 under section 186 of the 

Act, 2013 which is available for inspection during the business hours on all working days. 

FIXED DEPOSITS 
 

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public during the financial year ended March 31, 

2023 and as such, there are no outstanding deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 

2014. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 

There were no contract(s) / arrangement(s) / transaction(s) entered into by your Company with its related 

parties, during the year under review as per the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act read with Companies 

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulations 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Particulars of contract or arrangements made with related parties referred to section 188 (1) of the Companies 

Act, is prescribed in Form AOC -2 as “ANNEXURE 1” to Board’s Report. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

(i) Director Retiring By Rotation: 
 

 In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of your Company, Ms. 

Dhwani J Mehta (DIN: 07105522), Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at the Eighty Ninth 

Annual General Meeting as she is holding office for the longest period and her appointment shall be liable to 

retire by rotation. 

 Ms Dhwani J Mehta has confirmed her eligibility and willingness to accept the office of the Director of your 

Company, if confirmed by the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the opinion of your Directors 

Ms. Dhwani Mehta have requisite qualifications and experience and therefore, your Directors recommend that 

the proposed resolution relating to the re-appointment Ms. Dhwani Mehta be passed. 
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(ii) Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:  

 

A) Mr. Rajesh M. Loya, Whole Time Director- CFO 
B) Mr. Nikhil V. Mehta, Executive Director – CEO 
C) Mr.Vedashri Chaudhari, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (Resigned w.e.f.7th July, 2023) 
D) Mr. Kapil Purohit, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 1st September, 2023) 

Mr. Chetan J Mehta retired from the designation of CFO and Executive Director since was liable to retire by 

rotation and was not re-appointed since resolution pertaining to re-appointment was not passed in AGM held on 

30th Sep 2022 as per voting results. 

 

(iii) Declaration Of Independence By Independent Director: 
 

All the Independent Directors have given their declarations stating that they meet the criteria of independence as 

laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b)of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’). In the opinion of 

the Board, they fulfil the conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations and are 

independent of the management. 

 

(iv) Separate Meeting of Independent Directors & Evaluation Process: 
 

Mr. Amit Shah, Mr. Gautam Shah, and Mr. Maneesh Taparia, Independent Directors of the Company, had a 

separate meeting during the financial year, in terms of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

SEBILODR, whereat performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole, and the Chairman of the 

Company was reviewed together with the assessment of the quality, quantity, and timeliness of the flow of 

information between the management of the Company and the Board as well as overview of succession planning, 

risk management, internal controls and prioritization of strategic objectives and Board efficiency. The 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee also conducted a similar evaluation exercise. The evaluation 

concluded that the Board, its Committee and individual Directors continue to function effectively and remains 

well balanced and diverse with a strong mix of relevant skills, expertise, and experience. 

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the 

Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors including Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed by Management 

and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the 

Company’s Internal Financial Controls were adequate and effective during the Financial Year 2022-23. 

   Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby 

state and confirm that: 

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanations relating to material departure, if any; 
 

(ii) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2023 and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023; 
 

(iii) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

(iv) They have prepared the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 on a going concern basis. 
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(v) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and are operating effectively. 
 

(vi) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE   EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Considering the nature of activities of the Company, the information required under Sub-section (3)(m) of Section 

134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014to be disclosed relating to the 

conservation of energy and technology absorption  is provided as “ANNEXURE V” to the Board’s Report. 

There is no foreign technology involved/ absorbed. During the year under review, the Company has neither 

earned any foreign exchange nor incurred any expenditure in Foreign exchange.  

BOARD’S DIVERSITY AND EVALUATION: 
 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board in its success. We believe that a truly 

diverse Board will leverage difference in thought, perspective, knowledge, skill, regional and industry experience 

which will help us retain our competitive advantage. 

At present, your Company has Eight Directors and pursuant to the Regulation 17(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations your Company complies with this requirement. In terms of 

the Listing Regulations, your Company conducts the Familiarization Program for Independent Directors about 

their roles, rights, responsibilities in your Company, nature of the industry in which your Company operates, 

business model of your Company, etc., through various initiatives. The details of the same are displayed on the 

website of the Company. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis 

of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and 

functioning, etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members 

on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

The Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of the entire Board, Committees and all the Directors 
based on the parameters specified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The exercise was carried out 
through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the functioning of the Board and its 
Committees. Individual Directors were evaluated separately on basis of their respective designations and roles. 

 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 
 
During the financial year 2022-23, the Board of Directors met Seven times and the last Annual General Meeting held 
on 30thSeptember, 2022. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Note: Mr. Nikhil V. Mehta was appointed as Additional Director and CEO of the Company dated 28th October 2022 
and Mr. Rajesh Loya was appointed as CFO of the Company as on 28.10.2022. 

 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

 
Currently, the Board has three committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee. For the Financial year 2022-2023, the composition of the Committee is as per 
the applicable provisions of the Act , Regulations and Rules: 

Name of Committee 
No. of Meetings 

held 

Audit Committee 
 
7 
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
6 
 

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 
 
6 

 

AUDITORS: 

A). STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

In accordance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, M/s P.G. Bhagwat 
Chartered Accountants LLP (Firm Registration Number: 101118W/ W100682) has been appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of Five years commencing from the conclusion of 88th AGM 
until the conclusion of the 93rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in year 2027. 

The requirement for the annual ratification of Auditors appointment at the Annual General Meeting has been 
omitted pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on 7th May, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is 
being proposed for ratification of the appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

During the year, the statutory auditors have confirmed that that they satisfy the independence criteria required 
under Companies Act, 2013 and Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

M/s P.G. Bhagwat Chartered Accountants LLP, have submitted the Auditor’s Reports on the Standalone Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023and states that it does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer requiring any explanations / comments in their report.No frauds have 
been reported by the Auditors under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
B). SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

The Company has appointed Ms. Zankhana Bhansali, Practicing Company Secretary,(FCS No: 9261)as a Secretarial 
Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-2023, as required under 
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules there under. 

The Secretarial Audit Report for F.Y.2022-2023forms part of the Annual Report as “ANNEXURE 3” to the Board's 
Report. 

The Auditors’ Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 do not contain any qualification or reservation or 
adverse remark. 

The Secretarial Auditor has made following observations for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 in Secretarial 
Audit Report. (Annexure Attached) 

The management is of the opinion that the Regulation 47 speaks only about publication in regional newspaper & not 

about translating the result to regional language. Also similar practice is generally followed by other corporate as 
well. Hence Management is of the opinion that it has done complete compliance as mandated under the Regulation. 

There were MCA Portal issues which caused delay in filing that was for only one instance 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 
 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and Company's operations in future.  

The details of the pending cases with various authorities are mentioned in the notes to Financial Statements. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) Section 92(3)of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return of the 
company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023in the prescribed format is appended& uploaded as link under 
www.apteindia.com/www.clubemerald.in as “ANNEXURE II” to the Board's report. 

 
WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

 

http://www.apteindia.com/www.clubemerald.in
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The Company is having website i.e.www.apteindia.com/www.clubemerald.in and the annual return of Company 
has been published on such website. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 
 
The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal financial control as per Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
The Board has laid down policies and processes in respect of internal financial controls and such internal financial 
controls were adequate and were operating effectively. The internal financial controls covered the policies and 
procedures adopted by your Company for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of business including adherence to 
your Company’s policies, safeguarding of the assets of your Company, prevention and detection of fraud and errors, 
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
 
COST RECORD: 
 
The provision of Cost audit as per section 148 is not applicable to the Company. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

 
The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. 
 

 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
 

Your Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. This policy applies to all 
categories of employees of the Company, including permanent management and workmen, temporaries, trainees 
and employees on contract at their workplace or at client sites. Internal Complaints Committee(s) (ICC) has been 
set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The cases reported to such Committee(s) are 
investigated by the respective Committee(s) members and the detailed report thereon is presented to the Board of 
Directors on a regular basis. During the year under report, your Company did not receive any case of sexual 
harassment and hence as at March 31, 2023, there were no pending cases of anti-harassment in your Company. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY: 

 
There are no significant or material orders which were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
impact the going concern status and the Company’s Operations in future. 

 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 
a) Information as per Rule 5(1) of Chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 
The remuneration and perquisites provided to our employees including that of the Management are on a par with 
industry levels. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee continuously reviews the compensation of our 
senior executives to align both the short-term and long-term business objectives of the Company and to link 
compensation with the achievement of measurable performance goals. 
 
Remuneration paid to Board of Directors of the Company: 
 

Name of Director Title 
Remuneration in 
financial year 2021-
2022 

Remuneration in 
Financial Year 2022-
2023 

No. of shares held 
in the Company 

Mr. JashwantMehta Non-Executive Director NIL NIL 8,64,440 

Mr. Chetan Mehta 
Executive Director  and Chief 
Financial Officer 

NIL NIL 8,64,440 

Mr. Rajesh Loya Whole Time Director/CFO NIL NIL NIL 

Mr.ManeeshTaparia 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Rs.11,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

Rs.13000/- NIL 

Ms. DhwaniMehta Non-Executive Director NIL NIL NIL 

http://www.apteindia.com/
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Mr. Gautam Shah 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Rs.11,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

Rs.8000/- NIL 

Mr. Amit Shah 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Rs.11,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

Rs.13000/- 4810 

Mr. Jaydeep Mehta Executive Director NIL NIL 8,64,450 

Mr.NikhilV.Mehta Additional Director & CEO NA NIL NIL 

 
Remuneration paid to the Key Managerial Personnel’s of the Company: 
 

Name of KMP Title 
Remuneration in 
financial year 
2021-22 

Remuneration in 
Financial Year 2022-
23 

No. of shares held in 
the Company 

Mr. Rajesh Loya Whole time Director/ CFO NIL NIL NIL 

Mr. Chetan Mehta 
Director  and Chief Financial 
Officer 

NIL NIL 8,64,440 

Ms. Vedashri 
Chaudhari 

Company Secretary and  
Compliance Officer 

4,80,000 P.A 4,80,000 P.A NIL 

Mr. Nikhil V. Mehta Additional Director & CEO NA NIL 8,64,440 

 
Note: Mr. Nikhil V. Mehta was appointed as Additional Director and CEO and Mr. Rajesh Loya as CFO of the 
Company in the Board Meeting held on 28th October 2022. 
 
During the Financial Year 2022-2023 the Company had an average count of 37 employees on the payroll of the 
Company. 

 

b). Information as per Rule 5(2) of Chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 

The information required under Section 134 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules for the year ended 31st March, 2023 is not applicable to the Company as none of the 
employee is drawing remuneration more than the limits presently specified under the said rules. 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
 

Pursuant to Section 135(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board’s Report should disclose the responsibility 

undertaken and committee constituted for the same. 

However, your Company has not earned sufficient profits for the financial year 2022-2023 and thus does not require 

complying with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
 
The Company recognizes that risk is inherent to any business activity and that managing risk effectively is critical to 
the immediate and future success of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has established a Risk Management 
Policy which has helped in overseeing the risks, management of material business risks and also helps in internal 
control of the Company.  The Policy is displayed on the website of the Company, www.clubemerald.inunder the 
heading Policies of Company. 
 
The Management of your Company is vigilant about their responsibility of overseeing and reviewing that the risk 
that the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, regulatory or any 
other risk have been defined and assessed. There is adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable of 
addressing those risks. 

 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 
ANDBANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT 
THEEND OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 
There were neither any applications made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 nor anyproceedings 
were pending. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, a brief note on Management Discussions 

and Analysis of the results for the year under review is given in Annexure which forms part of the Directors’ Report 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
 

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and is in process of establishing a mechanism 

for reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has thus formed a vigil mechanism and Whistle blower 

policy under which the employees are free to report violations of the applicable laws and regulations and the Code 

of Conduct. 

The reportable matters would be disclosed to the Audit Committee. The Policy is displayed on the website of the 

Companywww.apteindia.com/www.clubemerald.in under the heading Policies of Company. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 
 

Industrial Relations remained cordial throughout the year under review. 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 
The Directors thank Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedicated services of the 
employees of your company at all levels. 
 
 
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 
 
 
Sd/-   
Mr. Rajesh M. Loya 
Director& CFO 
DIN: 00252470 

Sd/- 
Mr. Nikhil V. Mehta 
Director& CEO 
DIN: 00252482 

     
Date: 30th May, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 
 

 
 

 

  

http://www.apteindia.com/
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ANNEXURE – I 

FORM AOC -2 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)  
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Act including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:  
 

1. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not Applicable 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

Name of the related party Amit V. Shah Maneesh Taparia Juhu Resorts & 

Development Pvt Ltd. 

Nature of relationship Independent Director Independent Director Common Directorship 

Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/tra
nsactions 

Annual Membership Fee 

received for Club 
Membership 

Amount received for 

Banqueting and Room 
Services 

Amount received for 

Outlet Sales, Room 
Services provided and 

amount paid for Room 

Services received 

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements/transactions 

Continuing nature 

transaction 

Continuing nature 

transaction 

Continuing nature 

transaction 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or arrangements 
or transactions including the 

value, if any 

- - - 

Date(s) of approval by the 

Board, if any 

- - - 

Amount paid as advances, if 
any 

NIL NIL NIL 

 

 

For Emerald Leisures Limited 

(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 
 

 

Sd/-                      Sd/- 

Mr. Rajesh Loya    Mr. Nikhil V. Mehta 
Whole Time Director & CFO                  Director & CEO 

DIN: 00252470   DIN: 00252482 

 

Date: 4th September, 2023 

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE-II 
 

FORM NO. MGT 9  
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN  

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2023 
 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company  

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 
 

CIN L74900MH1948PLC006791 

Registration Date 03/12/1948 

Name of the Company EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Category/ Sub-category of the Company 
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES/ INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT 
COMPANY 

Address of the Registered office & contact 
details 

CLUB EMERALD SPORTS COMPLEX, PLOT NO. 366/15, SWASTIK 
PARK, NEAR MANGAL ANAND HOSPITAL, CHEMBUR, MUMBAI 
CITY MH 400071 

Phone No: 022-25277504 / 9167888900 

Email id: info@clubemerald.in 

Whether listed company Yes (BSE Ltd.) 

Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & transfer Agent, if any. 

 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 

Unit No.9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estate, J.R. Boricha Marg 
Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai- 400011 
 
Phone No: 022 2301 6761/ 8261, Fax: 022 2301 2517 
Email Id: support@purvashare.com; 
Website: www.purvashare.com 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: 
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 
  

Sr. No. Name and Description of main products / services 
NIC Code of 
theProduct/service 

% to total turnover of the 
company 

    

1 Hotels & Resorts 55101 100% 

 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: NA 
 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN: 

A. Category Wise Shareholding 

Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the beginning of 

year31/03/2022 

No of Shares held at the end of year31/03/2023 % Change  

 Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares 
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares 
 

A. Promoters  

(1) Indian          

(a) Individuals/ HUF 3457770 0 3457770 69.0698 3457770 0 3457770 69.0698 0 

(b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

http://www.purvashare.com/
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(c) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

(e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(f) Any Other....     0 0 0 0 0 

* DIRECTORS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* DIRECTORS RELATIVES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Person Acting in Concern 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub Total (A)(1):  3457770 0 3457770 69.0698 3457770 0 3457770 69.0698 0 

(2) Foreign          

(a) NRI Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

(b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

(c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

(d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

(e) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

Sub Total (A)(2):  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

Total shareholding of 

Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 
3457770 0 3457770 69.0698 3457770 0 3457770 69.0698 0 

B. Public Shareholding  

(1) Institutions  

(a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(b) Banks FI 0 7940 7940 0.1586 0 7940 7940 0.1586 0 

(c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(h) Foreign Venture Capital 

Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(i) Others (specify)          

* UTI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* financial institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* IDBI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* ICICI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Government Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* State Financial Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* OTC Dealers (Bodies 

Corporate) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Private Sector Banks 0 610 610 0.0122 0 610 610 0.0122 0 
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Sub-total (B)(1):  0 8550 8550 0.1708 0 8550 8550 0.1708 0 

(2) Non-Institutions  

(a) Body Corporate.  

(i) Indian 468613 70750 539363 10.7739 468613 70750 539363 10.7739 0 

(ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(b) Individual  

(i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 

upto Rs. 1 lakh 176241 367780 544021 10.8669 201394 341190 542584 10.8382 -0.0287 

(ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 

in excess of Rs 1 lakh 83826 0 83826 1.6744 85804 0 85804 1.714 0.0396 

* UNCLAIMED OR 

SUSPENSE OR ESCROW 

ACCOUNT 0 341184 341184 6.8152 341184 0 341184 6.8152 0 

(c) Others (specify)  

(i) LLP          

(ii) Non Resident Indians 

(NRIs) 500 90 590 0.0118 750 90 840 0.0168 0.005 

(iii) HUF 26408 50 26458 0.5285 23857 50 23907 0.4775 -0.051 

(iv) Clearing Members 4438 0 4438 0.0887 6198 0 6198 0.1238 0.0351 

Sub-total (B)(2):  760026 779854 1539880 30.7594 1127800 412080 1539880 30.7594 0 

Total Public Shareholding 

(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 760026 788404 1548430 30.9302 1127800 420630 1548430 30.9302 0 

C. Total share held by 

Custodian for GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total (A + B + C) 4217796 788404 5006200 100 4585570 420630 5006200 100 0 

 

B. Shareholding of Promoters 

Sr. No. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year 

 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 

 

    

No of 

Shares 

% of Total 

Shares of the 

Company 

% of Shares 

Pledged / 
Encumbered to 

total shares 

No.of 

Shares 

%of Total 

Shares of 
the 

company 

% of Shares 

Pledged / 
Encumbered 

to total shares 

% change in 

shareholding 
during the 

year 

1 JAYDEEP VINOD 

MEHTA 864450 17.27 33.89 864450 17.27 33.89 0.00 

2 NIKHIL VINOD 

MEHTA 864440 17.27 33.89 864440 17.27 33.89 0.00 

3 JASHWANT 

BHAICHAND MEHTA 864440 17.27 33.89 864440 17.27 33.89 0.00 

4 

CHETAN JASHWANT 

MEHTA 864440 17.27 33.89 864440 17.27 33.89 0.00 

 

 

file:///C:/Users/Admin/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/66768A48.XLSM%23'Key%20Managerial%20Personnel'!F12
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C. Change in Promoter's Shareholding: 

Sr.No. 

Shareholder's Name 

ShareHolding at the beginning of the 

year 

Cumulative Shareholding at the 

end of the year Type 

31/03/2022 31/03/2023 

 

    No of Shares 
% of Total Shares 

of the Company 
No. of Shares 

% change in 
shareholding 

during the year  

1 

JAYDEEP VINOD MEHTA 864450 17.27       

31-03-2023   864450 17.27   

 

2 

NIKHIL VINOD MEHTA 864440 17.27       

31-03-2023     864440 17.27   

 

3 

JASHWANT BHAICHAND 

MEHTA 864440 17.27       

31-03-2023     864440 17.27   

 

 4 

CHETAN JASHWANT MEHTA 864440 17.27       

31-03-2023     864440 17.27   

 
D. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 

Sr. No. 
Shareholder's Name 

Share Holding at the beginning of the 

year31/03/2022 

Cumulative Share Holding at the 

end of the year31/03/2023 

Type 

    No of Shares 
% of Total Shares 

of the Company 
No. of Shares 

% change in 
shareholding 

during the year 

1. 

AYAY COMMODITY SERVICES 

PVT LTD 460230 9.19       

 31-03-2023     460230 9.19   

 

2. 

EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

- UNCLAIMED SHARES 

SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 341184 6.82       

 18-05-2022 -341184 -6.82 0 0.00 Sell 

 20-05-2022 341184 6.82 341184 6.82 Buy 

 31-03-2023     341184 6.82   

 

3. 

NAHALCHAND 

LALOOCHAND PRIVATE LTD 61830 1.24       

 31-03-2023     61830 1.24   

 

4. KAVITA TUSHAR SHAH 33522 0.67       

 13-05-2022 478 0.01 34000 0.68 Buy 

 30-09-2022 842 0.02 34842 0.70 Buy 
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 14-10-2022 3 0.00 34845 0.70 Buy 

 21-10-2022 255 0.01 35100 0.70 Buy 

 25-11-2022 280 0.01 35380 0.71 Buy 

 16-12-2022 10 0.00 35390 0.71 Buy 

 10-02-2023 110 0.00 35500 0.71 Buy 

 31-03-2023     35500 0.71   

 

5 MAHENDRA GIRDHARILAL 27656 0.55       

 31-03-2023     27656 0.55   

 

6. 

JITENDRA JAYANTILAL 

GANDHI 22648 0.45       

 31-03-2023     22648 0.45   

       

7. RAHUL ANANTRAI MEHTA 18088 0.36       

 31-03-2023     18088 0.36   

       

8. ARUN CHITLANGIA (HUF) 13540 0.27       

 06-05-2022 35 0.00 13575 0.27 Buy 

 27-05-2022 100 0.00 13675 0.27 Buy 

 22-07-2022 75 0.00 13750 0.27 Buy 

 05-08-2022 15 0.00 13765 0.28 Buy 

 19-08-2022 10 0.00 13775 0.28 Buy 

 30-09-2022 5 0.00 13780 0.28 Buy 

 14-10-2022 50 0.00 13830 0.28 Buy 

 18-11-2022 10 0.00 13840 0.28 Buy 

 10-03-2023 35 0.00 13875 0.28 Buy 

 31-03-2023     13875 0.28   

 

9. MOHAN SHANTILAL SHAH 9038 0.18       

 06-05-2022 358 0.01 9396 0.19 Buy 

 31-03-2023     9396 0.19   

 

10. 

MANJULA HASMUKHLAL 

SHAH 8572 0.17       

  28-05-2022 -160 -0.00 8412 0.17 Sell 

 

03-06-2022 210 0.00 8622 0.17 Buy 

 

31-03-2023     8622 0.17   

 

11. ARUN CHITLANGIA 8560 0.17       
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  13-05-2022 15 0.00 8575 0.17 Buy 

 20-05-2022 25 0.00 8600 0.17 Buy 

 27-05-2022 25 0.00 8625 0.17 Buy 

 31-03-2023     8625 0.17   

E. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

Sr. No. 
Shareholder's Name 

Share Holding at the beginning of the 
year31/03/2022 

Cumulative Share Holding at the 
end of the year30/03/2023 

 

    No of Shares 
% of Total Shares of 

the Company 
No. of Shares 

% change in 
shareholding 

during the year 
Type 

1. 

RAJESH MOTILAL LOYA 

(Whole Time Director & CFO) 0 0.00       

 
31-03-2023     0 0.00   

 

2. 

NIKHIL VINOD MEHTA  

(ADDITONAL DIRECTOR & 

CEO) 864440 17.27       

 
31-03-2023     864440 17.27   

 

3. 

VEDASHRI 

CHANDRASHEKHAR 

CHAUDHARI (Company 

Secretary - Resigned in July, 2023) 0 0.00       

  
31-03-2023     0 0.00   

 

 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment: 

     (Amt. Rs./Lacs) 

 Particulars 

Secured Loans 

excluding Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

  deposits    

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year    

i) Principal Amount 271674689 432436454 - 704111143 

ii) Interest due but not paid - 123721148 - 123721148 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 271674689 556157602 - 827832291 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year    

* Addition 20289876 404545000 - 424834876 

* Reduction 61420536 381112602 - 442533138 

Net Change (41130660)  23432398 - (17698262) 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year      

i) Principal Amount 230544029 579590000 - 810134029 

ii) Interest due but not paid - 51667715 - 51667715 

iii) Interest accrued but not due     

Total (i+ii+iii) 0    
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
 

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration            Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total(Rs/Lac) 

Name    Rajesh 

Motilal Loya 

Jaydeep Vinod 

Mehta 

Jashwant 

Bhaichand 

Mehta 

 

Designation   Whole Time 

Director 

Executive Director Executive Director  

1 Gross salary 0 0 0 0 

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained 

in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 

Act,1961 

0 0 0 0 

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

0 0 0 0 

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

0 0 0 0 

2    Stock Option 0 0 0 0 

3    Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0 

    Commission 0 0 0 0 

4.   -as % of profit 0 0 0 0 

 - others, specify 0 0 0 0 

5.      Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 

 Total (A) 0 0 0 0 

 Ceiling as per the Act     

 

B. Remuneration to other Directors: 
 

  Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount 

(Rs/Lac) 

1. Independent Directors Maneesh Taparia Amit 

Vardhman Shah 

Gautam 

Chandrakumar 

Shah 

 

 Fee for attending board committee 

meetings 

4000.00 5000.00 4000.00 13000.00 

 Commission 0 0 0 0 

 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 

 Total (1) 4000.00 5000.00 4000.00 13000.00 

2. Other Non-Executive Directors 0 0 0 0 

 Fee for attending board committee 

meetings 

0 0 0 0 

 Commission 0 0 0 0 

 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 

 Total (2) 0 0 0 0 

 Total (B)=(1+2) 4000.00 5000.00 4000.00 13000.00 

 Total Managerial Remuneration 4000.00 5000.00 4000.00 13000.00 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act     

 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Of Remuneration Name of MD/CEO/WTD/Manager 

 

Total Amount 

NIKHIL VINOD MEHTA Vedashri 
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(CEO) Chaudhari (CS) 

1 Gross salary 0 4,80,000 4,80,000 

 a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 

1961 

-  - 

 b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-

tax Act, 1961 

-  - 

 c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 

-  - 

2 Stock Option -  - 

3 Sweat Equity -  - 

4 Commission -  - 

 - As % of profit -  - 

 - Others, specify -  - 

5 Others, please specify - -  - 

 Total (A) 0 4,80,000 4,80,000 

 Ceiling as per the Act    

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the 

Companies Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of Penalty / 

Punishment/Comp

ounding fees 

imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal made, 

if any (give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

      
For and on behalf of the Board 

Emerald Leisures Limited 
 

SD/- 
Rajesh Motilal Loya 

Director 
DIN: 00252470 

Sd/- 
     Nikhil Vinod Mehta 

Director 
DIN - 00252482 
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ANNEXURE –III 
 

MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To,                                                                                                                          
The Members, 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") 
Club Emerald Sports Complex,  
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  
Near MangalAnand Hospital,  
Chembur, Mumbai 400071 
 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/s Emerald Leisures Limited (CINL74900MH1948PLC006791) (hereinafter called the 
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the M/s. Emerald Leisures Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives electronically during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2023 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers; minutes’ books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (’SCRA’) andthe rules made thereunder; 
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-lawsframed thereunder;  
 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 andthe rules and regulations made thereunder to theextent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Directlnvestment and External Commercial Borrowings: Not applicable 
to the extent of Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings as there was no 
reportable event during the Financial Year under review. 

 
(v) The   following   Regulations   and   Guidelines   prescribed   under   lhesecurities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (’SEBI Act'):- 
 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 
 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; Not applicable as the Company has not issued any shares during the year under review; 
  
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021 - Not Applicable as the Company has not issued any shares / options to directors / employees under 

the said regulations during the Financial Year under review.; 
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities Regulations, 2021 
– Not Applicable as the Company has not issued and listed debt securities during the Financial Year under 
review; 

 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

 
(g) The Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 - Not 

Applicable as the Company has not delisted/proposed to delist its equity shares from any Stock Exchanges 
during the Financial Year under review; and 

 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 Not applicable as the 

Company has not bought back / has proposed to buy-back any of its securities during the Financial Year 
under review. 

 

(vi) Other laws as per the representation made by the Company are as follows; 

 Rules and regulations laid down by BMC I MCGM. 

 IOD-CC (Commencement Certificate) to commence work &have received partOC (occupation Certificate) for 
the phase-I. 

 Eating House License from The Police department 

 FSSAI License from the State Government for serving food at our place under Food &Safety Standards Act, 
2006. 

 FL-3License for serving Liquor under State Excise Department of Maharashtra Government. FL-III under 
State Excise Department of Maharashtra Government. 

 Shop & Establishment Registration under Maharashtra Shop &Establishment Act, 1948. 

 The Employees Provident Funds &Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 

 Maharashtra State Tax On Professions I Trades Act, 1975 

 Goods & Service Tax, 2017 

 Maharashtra Value Added Tax Act, 2002 

 Income Tax Act, 1961 and Indirect Tax Laws 

 Eating House Licenses - Issued By Health Department Of Municipal Corporation 
Of Greater Mumbai 
 

 Electricity Act, 2003 

 No Objection Certificate Issued By Mumbai Fire Brigade Under Municipal 
Corporation of Greater Mumbai 
 

 • No Objection Certificate Issued by Mumbai Fire Brigade under Municipal of Greater Mumbai For Piped Natural Gas 
 

 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 

 Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act, 1994 
 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and 
general meetings except for the observation mentioned below :- 
 Circulation of Agenda Notice [Para 1.3.6. and 1.3.7 of SS-1]: The Company is advised to strictly comply with the time 

lines mentioned in SS-1 regarding ‘Circulation of Agenda Notice and also availing aknwloegment atleast 7 days 
before the date of the Baord Meeting for the same. 

 Circulation of signed minutes’ [Para 7.6.4 of SS-1]: It is also observed that the signed minutes are circulated to 
Directors belatedly after lapse of the said time period. 

 
(ii) The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE Limited) hence Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 :- are complied. 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following observations:  
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I further report that 

(a). During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

 

 Newspaper advertisement given in regional newspaper was given in English language instead of Regional language for 
the Board Meetings pursuant to the Regulation 47 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors including women Director.  
 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of 
the minutes. 
 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
 

I further Report that: 
(a) A case has been filed by a shareholder in the Court of Learned Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, 11th 

Court, Kurla against the erstwhile promoters of the Company, wherein the Company has been made a party to 
the matter. The Company has filed an appropriate response in the aforesaid matter. 
  

(b) The Company maintains an internal password-protected Excel sheet for maintaining Structural Digital Database 
Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

 

I further report that during the audit period there was no instance of: 
 

i. Public/Right/Preference issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity, etc. 
ii. Redemption / buy-back of securities 

iii. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc. 
iv. Foreign technical collaborations 
 

 

For Zankhana Bhansali & Associates  
Practising Company Secretary  
Sd/- 
Zankhana Bhansali  
(Proprietor) 
Mem. No. 9261   CP No. 10513 
UDIN: F009261E000417537 
 
Dated: 30th May 2023 
 
 
 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A” and forms an 
integral part if this report. 
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Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report 

 
To,                                                                                                                          
The Members, 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") 

Club Emerald Sports Complex,  
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  
Near Mangal Anand Hospital,  
Chembur, Mumbai 400071 
 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
1) It is the responsibility of management of the company to maintain secretarial records, device proper systems to 

ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are 
adequate and operate effectively. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
2) I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company. 
 

4) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happenings of events etc. 

 

5) The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
Disclaimer 
 
6) The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
For Zankhana Bhansali & Associates  
Practising Company Secretary  
 
Sd/- 
Zankhana Bhansali  
(Proprietor) 
Mem. No. 9261   CP No. 10513 
UDIN: F009261E000417537 
 
Dated: 30th May 2023  
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ANNEXURE-IV 

TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF 
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 ARE 
AS UNDER: 
 

Sr. No Disclosure Requirement 

Disclosure Details 

      Director       Designation      Ratio 

1 
The ratio of the remuneration of each 
director/KMP to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the financial year 
2022-23 

Rajesh Motilal Loya Whole Time Director & CFO - 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta Executive Director - 

Jaydeep Vinod Mehta Executive Director - 

Nikhil Vinod Mehta Director & CEO - 

Dhwani Jaydeep Mehta Non Executive Director - 

Vedashri Chaudhari CS - 

2 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, 
in the financial year 2022-23 

Directors and other Key 
Managerial Personnel 

Designation 
% increase in 
remuneration 

Rajesh Motilal Loya Whole Time Director & CFO - 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta Executive Director - 

Jaydeep Vinod Mehta Executive Director - 

Nikhil Vinod Mehta Director & CEO - 

Dhwani Jaydeep Mehta Non Executive Director - 

Vedashri Chaudhari CS - 

3 

The percentage increase or decrease in the 
median remuneration of employees in the 
financial year 2022-23 NA 

4 
The number of permanent employees on the rolls 
of Company 

37 Employees 
 

5 

The explanation on the relationship between 
average increase in remuneration and Company 
performance 

Recommendation for increase in remuneration is based on the following 
factors: 

 Compensation trends based on industry benchmarking 
 Compensation positioning vis-a-vis market trend 

 Alignment between risks and remuneration 

 Applicable regulatory guidelines 
 

6 

Comparison of the remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance of 
the Company N.A. 

7 
 
 
 
 
 

Average percentile increases already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its 
comparison with the percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial 
Remuneration 

N.A 

8 

Comparison of each remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance of 
the Company 

Key Managerial Personnel 
Remuneration 
– FY 2022-23 % PBT 

Total turnover of the 
Company 

Rajesh Motilal Loya - - 

Nikhil Vinod Mehta - - 

Vedashri Chaudhari - - 

9 
Key parameters for any variable component of 
remuneration availed by the directors 

N.A. 

10 

Ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid 
director to that of the employees who are not 
directors but receive remuneration in excess of 
the highest paid director during the year N.A. 

11 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid 
is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, 
Key Managerial personnel and Senior 
Management 

The Company is in compliance with its compensation policy. 
 
 
 



 
 89th ANNUAL REPORT F.Y. 2022-23 

38 | P a g e  
 

“ANNEXURE V” 

DISCLOSURE RELATED TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND  

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

It is Company’s continuous and consisted endeavor to operate in safe and environmentally responsible manner 

for the long- term benefit of all its shareholders 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

1. Steps taken for conservation of energy: 

a. Operation of Air Conditioning plant with Air Handling Unit (AHU) 

b. Water meter installed to monitor & conserve water conservation 

c. Rain Harvesting System implemented to conserve water in ground 

d. CFL lamps being replaced by LED lamps in phased manner 

e. Sensor based ON/OFF lighting system in all public areas 

f. Electric Load Balancing System for efficient use of power. 

g. Use of Capacitors to maintain power factor 

h. Use of hydro pneumatic system for pumping water 

i. Use of Thermal storage technology For Air Conditioning for efficient use of power 

 

2. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy: 

i. Heat exchange system installed to absorb heat released from air conditioning unit, which is utilized to 

make hot water without using any boiler or electric heater 

ii. Use of Bore Well for using rain harvested water and minimum use of BMC supplied water. 

 

 

For Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 
 
Sd/-               Sd/- 
Mr. Rajesh Loya   Mr. Nikhil V. Mehta 
Whole Time Director   Director & CEO 

   DIN: 00252470    DIN: 00252482 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YOUR DIRECTORS ARE PLEASED TO PRESENT THE MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023. 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis have been included in consonance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance as approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Investors are cautioned that these 
discussions contain certain forward-looking statements that involve risk and uncertainties including those risks 
which are inherent in the Company’s growth and strategy. The company undertakes no obligation to publicly 
update or revise any of the opinions or forward-looking statements expressed in this report consequent to new 
information or developments, events or otherwise. 
 
The management of the company is presenting herein the overview, opportunities and threats, initiatives by the 
Company and overall strategy of the company and its outlook for the future. This outlook is based on 
management’s own assessment and it may vary due to future economic and other future developments in the 
country. 
 
The operational performance and future outlook of the business has been reviewed by the management based on 
current resources and future development of the Company. 
 
 

INDIAN ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

Indian Economy had witnesses lowest GDP growth rates in it’s’ history in past 2 years due to impact of COVID-19.  

While FY 21-22 indicated a “W” shaped recovery, by FY 22-23 the recovery from pandemic was more of K shape 

with certain sectors registering healthy recoveries whiles certain sectors showing high negative impact. Travel & 

hospitality have benefitted of the recovery. 

 The First Advance estimates of National Income released by NSO of GoI in Jan’23 estimates India’s GDP to have 

grown by 7.0% in FY 22-23 following a growth of 8.7% in FY21-22. Though globally there are talks of recession, 

Indian economy  has shown resilience and the consensus of  expected GDP growth after factoring for domestic 

inflation, global slowdown & geopolitical situation,  is between 6 -6.5% in current fiscal 23-24. Indian economy is 

now the fastest growing major economy in the world. The focus is now on hygiene, environment friendly & 

sustainable hospitality services. Personalised and customisable experiences will be the new normal.  

The outlook for FY 23-24 is optimistic. Retail inflation is ebbing, Indian Rupee is stable, Current Account Deficit is 
moderate, direct and indirect tax collections are robust, bank balance sheets are strong, credit off take in FY22-23 
was highest since FY-11-12 and consumer sentiment is high ( Source RBI – Monetary Policy April’23, Revised 
estimates, Ministry of Finance) . 
 
INDUSTRY OUTLOOK 

Global tourism is steadily improving towards pre-pandemic levels. Tourist arrivals internationally for calendar 

year 2022 were 9817 million, double that of 2021 & touching 63% of pre-pandemic levels of 2019.  The UNWTO 

expects International tourism to consolidate its’ recovery in 2023, more specifically in Asia & Pacific region. 

UNWTO expects international tourist arrivals to reach 80% to 95% of pre-pandemic levels in 2023. (Source-

UNWTO Barometer, January’2023). As per a report by Skift India Occupancy in Indian hotels is expected to 

improve to 66 percent in 2023, according to hospitality research firm HVS Anarock’s latest report. India’s 

hospitality sector ended 2022 with occupancy in the 59-61 percent range, up 15-17 percentage points from the 

previous year, the report said. Average room rates recovered fully in 2022, crossing 2021 levels by 37-39 percent 

and revenue per available room in 2022 increased by 89-91 percent over the previous year.  

As per Howarth HTL’s India Hotel Market Review, 2022, calendar year occupancy for 2022 was 59.8% as 
compared to 43.5% in 2021. The average daily rate (ADR) for 2022 was Rs.6103 & revenue per available room 
(RevPAR) was Rs.3648 as against Rs.4429 & Rs.1924 respectively in 2021.  Mumbai registered highest RevPAR & 
occupancy at Rs.7532 & 78% respectively. (Source STR). In India, Tax collections have reached a new high, macro-
economic parameters are good, digital transactions have scaled new peak, there is robust growth in domestic 
airline traffic, Industry has learned to work with volatility & leaner cost structures and GenX & milleniels are 
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showing an increasing fondness for travelling and exploring newer destinations. There is also a rising trend for 
destination weddings & celebrations & the traditional domestic travel demand and domestic tourism has shown 
robust growth in recent times. These trends augur well for the Indian Hospitality industry. Additionally, India’s 
G20 presidency & opportunity to host international summits at varied locations, ICC Mens’ world cup cricket, 
growth in services sector, higher disposable income in hands of young entrepreneurs due to increasing 
investments in Start-up sector , referred to in HSBC’s economic research paper is expected to increase demand for 
corporate travel & holidays. 
 

As COVID-19 and Omicron takes a back seat, Russia – Ukraine war, disturbances in neighbouring countries, rising 
oil & gas prices, threat of global slowdown have taken a centre stage & threaten global economic growth which 
can have some impact of India’s growth prospects as well. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 

Social Events, Weddings, MICE Events and Business Travel are the Four KEY components of business.   Work 

from Home is the new normal & combining business with vacation is the new trend. With the new found passion 

for travelling and spending, we see good opportunity for growth in the business. Indian Traveller is the new 

attractive segment for Indian market. 

Travel restrictions, competition from new entrants, resurgence of COVID like pandemic, inflation, rising airline 
fares, unforeseen events, seasonality & cyclical nature of the business, war, global slowdown etc. are some of the 
key factors that pose a threat to the business growth. 
 
MITIGATION 

We are constantly working on excelling the customer delight and expanding our reach through our quality of 
service, our amenities, our food, affordability of our offerings and value-addition. Targeting non-traditional 
demand , bringing in operational efficiencies, rationalising costs across major expense heads, bringing down  
material procurement costs, improving occupancy levels and ARR, have been some of the prominent measures 
taken by the Company in order to mitigate the threats. We undertake continual repairs & maintenance to the assets 
to provide excellent hospitality experiences. We also have a continual risk management framework to ensure 
competitive advantages, business continuity & minimise adverse impact on business objectives 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & ITS’ ADEQUACY 

We have well established policies & procedures for internal control of operations and activities that ensures that all 
the assets are protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all transactions are recorded and 
reported in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Entire work force is integrated to work in 
unison to achieve laid down service and efficiency standards.  We have an internal control system with checks and 
balance pertaining to key operations that ensures maximum compliance to norms and regulations required by the 
regulatory authorities across various aspects of the business and also supports continuous monitoring & corrective 
actions to be taken.  The Audit Committee periodically reviews the audit findings & recommends corrective action 
to the Board as and when required. 
 
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 

The Company operates out its single stand alone property located at Chembur, Mumbai. The Company’s 
hospitality offerings are marked by its’ service and exclusive vegetarian food at it’s’ restaurants and banquets 
which finds strong endorsement from it’s’ customers. Strong understanding of it’s’ customer’s expectations has 
helped a fast turnaround and recover from the COVID-19 impact. The Company has continued to adhere to 
specific Health and Hygiene mandates of the local government and authorities and rationalised its’ operations 
accordingly.  The Company has continued to follow its’ growth targets in line with asset light expansion strategy. 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

For the FY 22-23, Revenues from operations were Rs.1488.59 lakhs, higher by 70.75 % over FY 21-22 and EBITDA 

for FY 22-23 was Rs.580.11 lakhs as compared to Rs.216.68 lakhs for FY 21-22. The Company registered good 

growth in business as economies opened up, travel restrictions were removed and pent up demand for travel and 

celebrations got released. The Company has improved its’ operational efficiency  
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SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE 

The Company operates in a single business segment and hence no separate segment wise performance is required 

to be given. 

OUTLOOK & STRATEGY 

There has been a marked improvement in consumer confidence to travel due to effective vaccination, low fatality 

rate of Omicron variant & better healthcare preparedness, which is reflected in industry achieving pre-COVID 

level of occupancies. Due to massive development of infrastructure facilities and better and faster connectivity 

options, domestic travel has gained momentum & International travel should soon follow suit. Corporate business 

travel is likely to increase substantially for purposes of client acquisitions, conferences, exhibitions, tradeshows 

and relationship building. Further demand for weddings and other social celebration is also rising. Due to these 

factors, demand forecast is expected to be robust. Further due to favourable demand – supply ratio the average 

rates are firming up. Due to these factors demand forecast is expected to be robust and augurs well for future 

growth of the Company 

 The Company is focussed on building on its’ strength and capabilities to net newer opportunities of growth by 

reaching out to newer customers with more and better hospitality offerings across different segments of customer 

portfolio. 

HEALTH & SAFETY 

We adhere to all safety protocols and rules and regulations set by the regulatory authorities as regards fire, 

building safety, sanitation, COVID-19 protocols and garbage disposal. We are committed to providing a safe and 

conducive work environment to our people.  Designing and implementation of Health & Safety protocols is one of 

the important items on agenda across all our decision making processes.  

FOOD SAFETY, HYGIENE AND CLEANLINESS 

The Company is constantly monitoring adherence to FSSAI guidelines and standards. We conduct periodic 

trainings for our staff to apprise them of the importance of following the standards. We also make use of newer 

technologies and processes for water recycling, waste management and garbage disposal.  

HUMAN RESOURCES  

The Company believes that our people are our greatest asset.  Our loyal and skilled staffs enable us to withstand 

the challenges and grow in a highly competitive and dynamic industry. We strive to develop teams that are fully 

involved in their work and empower them to achieve new milestones in customer satisfaction and experience. 

They are constantly guided by the Company’s philosophy of “A Service Approach To Growth”.  We recognise the 

criticality of human resource and ensure a conducive work environment that helps learning and growth of 

individuals that in turn will enable achieving the Organisational Objectives. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Information in the management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s projection, estimates, 
expectations or predictions, may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws 
and regulations. Actual results could differ significantly from those expressed or implied in the statement. 
Important factors that would make a difference to the Company’s operations include slowdown in India’s 
economic growth, inflation, war, change in Government Regulations, tax laws and other factors such as litigations 
and labour relations. 

      
For and on behalf of the Board 

Emerald Leisures Limited 
 

SD/- 
Rajesh Motilal Loya 

Director 
DIN: 00252470 

Sd/- 
     Nikhil Vinod Mehta 

Director 
DIN - 00252482 
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CFO CERTIFICATION 

Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 

To, 
The Board of Directors  
Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") 
Club Emerald Sports Complex,  
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  
Near Mangal Anand Hospital,  
Chembur, Mumbai 400071 
 
I, Mr. Rajesh Motilal Loya, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Emerald Leisures Limited certify that we have 
reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we certify that – 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 
 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year ended 31st March, 2023, which is fraudulent, illegal or violated of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 
 

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting 
and they have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify 
these deficiencies. 

 
5. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee: 
 
i. Significant changes, if any in the internal controls over financial reporting during the year; 

 
ii. Significant changes, if any in accounting policies made during the year and the same have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements; and 
 
iii. Instances of significant fraud, if any of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting. 

  
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
 
Sd/-  
Rajesh Motilal Loya 

CFO  
Date: 14th August, 2023 
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CERTIFICATE FOR ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI 

(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015] 

 

DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR 

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the listing 

agreement with the stock exchange, I hereby confirm that, all the Directors and senior management personnel of the 

Company to whom the code of conduct is applicable have affirmed the compliance of the said code during the 

financial year ended March 31st 2023. 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
 
Sd/-  
Rajesh Motilal Loya 

CFO  
Date: 14th August, 2023 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS (PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34(3) AND 

SCHEDULE V PARA C CLAUSE (10) (i) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015) 

 

To, 
The Members, 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") 
Club Emerald Sports Complex,  
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  
Near Mangal Anand Hospital,  
Chembur, Mumbai 400071 

 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosure received from the Directors of Emerald 
Leisures Limited (Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")having CIN L74900MH1948PLC006791 and 
having registered office at Club Emerald Sports Complex,  Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  Near Mangal Anand 
Hospital,  Chembur, Mumbai 400071(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) produced before me by the Company for 
the purpose of issuing this certificate in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C sub Clause (10)(i) 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

 
In my opinion and to the best of my knowledge and according to the verifications including Directors Identification 
number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanation furnished to me by the 
Company and its officers , I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the financial year ending on 31st March 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of Companies by the Securities Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or such other statutory 
Authority. 

 
Sr. No. Name of Directors  DIN Date of 

Appointment 
Status of the Directors 

1 *Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 00235845 12/08/2010 * Mr. Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta is 

Director of Active Non-Compliant 

Company and also his DIN is de-

activated due to non-filing of DIR-

3 KYC. 

2 Rajesh Motilal Loya 00252470 12/08/2010 Active 

3 Jaydeep Vinod Mehta 00252474 07/10/2016 Active 

4 Maneesh Taparia 00267558 29/09/2015 Active 

5 Gautam Chandrakumar Shah 00271794 25/09/2015 Active 

6 Dhwani Jaydeep Mehta 07105522 13/02/2015 Active 

7 Amit Vardhman Shah 07306728 08/10/2015 Active 

8 Nikhil Vinod Mehta 00252482 28/10/2022 Active 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment or continuity of every Director on the Board of above referred Company is 
the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion as stated above based 
on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For Zankhana Bhansali & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretary 

 
SD/- 
Zankhana Bhansali 
Proprietor  
Mem. No.  9261; COP No.: 10513 
UDIN:  F009261E000417526 

 
Date: 30th May, 2023 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2023, in terms of 

Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (The 

“Listing Regulations”). 

INTRODUCTION: 

 
Corporate Governance is not merely the compliance of a set of regulatory laws and regulations but is a set of good 
and transparent practices that enable an organization to perform efficiently and ethically to generate long term 
wealth and create value for all its stakeholders. It goes beyond building and strengthening the trust and integrity 
of the Company by ensuring conformity with the globally accepted best governance practices. The Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) observes keen vigilance over governance and fulfillment of these regulations in 
letter and spirit, which entails surety towards sustainable development of the Company, enhancing stakeholders’ 
value eventually. 

 
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: - 
 
The Company adherence to the Corporate Governance practices not only justifies the legal obedience of the laws 
but dwells deeper, conforming to the ethical leadership and stability. It is the sense of good governance that our 
leaders portray which trickles down to the wider management and is further maintained across the entire 
functioning of the Company. Your Company envisages the importance of building trust and integrity through 
transparent and accountable communication with the internal and external stakeholders as well as the customers 
of the Company. This involves keeping the stakeholders of the Company updated on a timely basis about the 
development, the plans and the performance of the Company with a view to establish the long-term affiliations. 
The Company keeps itself abreast with the best governance practices on the global front, at the same time 
conforming to the recent amendments. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: - 
 
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of your Company provides leadership and guidance to the Company’s 
management and directs, supervises and controls the performance of the Company. The Board plays a crucial role 
of piloting the Company towards enhancement of the short- and long-term value interests of the stakeholders. The 
Board comprises of the members distinguished in various fields such as management, finance, law, marketing, 
technology and strategic planning. 
 
The Company has an optimum combination of Directors on the Board. As on March 31, 2023, the Board comprised 
of 8 Directors out of which 3 are Executive Directors, 2 are Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors and 3 are 
Non-Executive Independent Directors. 
 
Agenda papers of the Boards and its committee meetings are circulated to the directors well in advance of the 
meetings, supported with significant information and well-informed decision making during the meetings. 
 
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and strategy apart from 
other normal business. During the financial year 2022-2023, Seven (7) Board Meetings were held on i) 30.05.2022 ii) 
13.08.2022, iii) 05.09.2022, iv) 28.10.2022, v) 14.11.2022, vi) 30.01.2023 and vii) 14/02/2023. Time gap between any 
two meetings was not more than 120 days. 
 
Details of the composition, category of the Directors, their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year 
& 88th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30th September, 2022, Directorships and Committee Memberships 
are as under: 

Name Category DIN No.   of shares 
held 

Attendance 

    Board Meeting Last AGM 

Mr. Rajesh Motilal Loya Whole Time Director 00252470 Nil 7 Yes 
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Mr. Jaydeep Vinod Mehta Executive Director 00252474 8,64,450 6 Yes 

Mr. Jashwant Bhaichand 
Mehta 

Non-Executive Director 00235845 8,64,450 4 No 

Mr. Chetan Mehta Executive Director 00235911 8,64,450 3 Yes 

Mr. Nikhil Vinod Mehta 
 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

00252482 8,64,450 3 No 

Ms. Dhwani Jaydeep 
Mehta 
 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

07105522 Nil 7 Yes 

Mr Gautam Chandrakumar 
Shah 
 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

00271794 Nil 4 No 

Mr. Amit Vardhman Shah Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

07306728  6 Yes 

Mr. Maneesh Taparia Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

00267558  5 Yes 

 
*Excluding directorship in, private companies, unlisted public companies, foreign companies and companies 
incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
The Board periodically reviews the compliance report of all laws applicable to the Company. All the Directors 
have made necessary disclosures about the directorships and committee positions they occupy in other 
companies. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more 
than 5 Committees across all Companies in which they are Directors. 
 
The particulars of Directors, who are proposed to be re-appointed at the ensuing AGM, are given in the Notice 
convening the AGM. 
 
Skill/ expertise/ competence of the Board of Directors 
The Board comprises qualified members who bring in the required skill, competence and expertise that allow 
them to make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees. 
The table below summarizes the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors 
desired in the context of the business(es) and sector(s) of the Company for it to function effectively and those 
actually available with the Board: 
 

Skill area Description  Number of Directors 
having particular 
skills 

Financials  Expert knowledge and understanding in Accounts, Finance, Banking, 
Auditing and Financial Control System 

8 

Leadership and Strategic 
Planning 

Ability to understand organization, processes, strategic planning and 
risk management. Experience in developing talent, succession 
planning and driving change and long term growth. 

8 

Legal and Governance Ability to protect shareholders’ interests and observe appropriate 
governance practices. Monitor risk and compliance management 
system including legal framework. 

8 

Corporate Governance Experience in developing good governance practices, serving thebest 
interests of all stakeholders, maintaining board and management 
accountability, building long-term effective stakeholder engagements 
and driving corporate ethics and values 

8 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
The Audit Committee comprises of experts specializing in accounting / financial management. During the 
Financial Year 2022-23, Seven (7) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 30/05/2022, 13/05/2022, 
13/08/2022, 05/09/2022, 27/10/2022, 10/11/2022, 28/01/2023 and 13/02/2023. The time gap between any two 
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meetings was not more than 120 days and the Company has complied with all the requirements as mentioned 
under the applicable provisions and the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under: 

Name Category Attendance 

Mr. Maneesh Taparia Chairperson – Independent Director 7 

Mr. Amit Shah Member – Independent Director 7 

 Mr. Rajesh Loya Member - Director 7 

 
The terms of reference for the Audit Committee include: 

 Examination of Financial Statement and Statutory Auditors’ report thereon and discussion of any related 
issues with the Internal & Statutory Auditors and the management of the Company. 

 Review of Financial Statement before their submission to the Board, including Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement, changes in accounting policies and practices, statutory compliances and qualification in draft audit 
report. 

 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties. 

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

 Evaluation of internal financial controls. 

 Evaluation of risk management system. 

 Monitoring end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 

 Establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns and to make 
provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases and 
review its findings. 

 Review of Company’s financial reporting processes and the disclosure of financial information to ensure that 
the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

 Look into reasons for substantial defaults in payments to stakeholders. 

 Approval of appointment of CFO or any other person heading Finance function after assessing the 
qualifications, experience, background etc. of the candidate. 

 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company. 

 Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, effectiveness of audit process and 
adequacy of internal control systems. 

 Call for comments of the Statutory Auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including the 
observations of the Statutory Auditors. 

 Reviewing the adequacy of the Internal Audit function including the structure of the Internal Audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 
frequency of Internal Audit. 

 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about nature and scope of audit as well as 
post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

 Reviewing findings of any internal investigation into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or 
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board. 
 

The Chairman of the Committee to attend the General Meeting to respond to the queries of shareholders. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 
The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Governance Norms (Regulation 19(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015), as amended from time to time. 

During the financial year 2022-2023, Six (6) meetings of the Committee were held on 30/05/2022, 13/08/2022, 
05/09/2022, 27/10/2022, 10/11/2022 and 13/02/2023. 

Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under: 
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Name Category Attendance 

Mr. Maneesh Taparia Chairperson – Independent Director 6 

Mr. Gautam Shah Member – Independent Director 5 

Mr. Chetan Mehta* Member - Director 2 

 Ms. Dhwani Mehta* Member - Director 2 

Note: * Mr. Chetan Mehta has resigned w.e.f. 28.10.2022 and in place of him Ms. Dhwani Mehta has appointed as 
member of the Committee. 

 

The terms of reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes: 

 To formulate a Nomination and Remuneration Policy on determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director guiding remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and other 
employees and Board diversity. 

 Recommend Nomination and Remuneration Policy to the Board. 

 Identify candidates who are qualified to become Directors. 

 Identify persons who are qualified to become Senior Management (Senior Management of the Company 
means employees of the Company who are Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads). 

 Recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management. 

 Lay down the process for evaluation of the performance of every Director on the Board. 
 The Chairman of the Committee to attend the General Meeting to respond to the queries of shareholders. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
Six (6) meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were held during the year 2022-23 on 30/05/2022, 
13/08/2022, 05/09/2022, 27/10/2022, 10/11/2022 and 13/02/2023. 
 

The details of composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under: 
 

Name Category Attendance 

Mr. Amit Shah  Chairman& Independent Director 6 

Mr. Gautam Shah  Member & Independent Director 5 

Mr. Rajesh Loya     Member & Director 6 

 

The Committee Reviews Shareholder’s complaints like non-receipt of Annual Report, physical transfer / 
transmission / transposition, split / consolidation of share certificates, issue of duplicate share certificates etc. 
This Committee is also empowered to consider and resolve the grievance of other stakeholders of the Company 
including security holders. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 
 

During the year under review, the Company is exempted from the provision of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.  
 

 

INVESTOR COMPLAINT: 
 
The details of investor complaints received by the company during the financial year 2022-23 are as follows: 
 

Opening Balance Received  during  the year Resolved  during  the year Closing Balance 

Nil 
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
 
Venue, day, date and time of last three AGMs: 
 
Date Venue Time 

30th September, 2022 
Through VC/OAVM 

Through VC/OAVM (Deemed Venue) Plot 
No.366/15, Club Emerald Swastik Park, Near Mangal 
Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 
400071 

11:30 A.M. 

30th September, 2021 
Through VC/OAVM 

Through VC/OAVM (Deemed Venue) Plot 
No.366/15, Club Emerald Swastik Park, Near Mangal 
Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 
400071 

11:00 A.M. 

15th October, 2020 
Through VC/OAVM 

Through VC/OAVM (Deemed Venue) Plot 
No.366/15, Club Emerald Swastik Park, Near Mangal 
Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 
400071 

11.00 A.M. 

 
FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 
In terms of Reg. 25(7) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 the Company is required to conduct the 
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors (IDs) to familiarize them about their roles, rights, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the 
Company, etc., through various initiatives. 
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 
 
The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own 
performance and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 states 
that the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, 
excluding the director being evaluated, the evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was 
conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. 
 
SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 
A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 9th February, 2023.  The Independent Directors 
reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. The Directors also discussed about the diversity of the Board. 
 
DISCLOSURES: 
 
a. Whistle Blower Policy (Policy on vigil mechanism) 
 
Pursuant to sub-section (9) & (10) of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil 
mechanism) for Directors and Employees of the Company to report their genuine concerns or grievances. The 
Audit Committee was empowered by the Board of Directors to monitor the same and to report to the Board 
about the complaints in an unbiased manner. The policy may be referred to on the website of the Company 
(www.ainvest.co.in). 
 
b. Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 
 
The Board has laid down Codes of Conduct for Executive Directors & Senior Management and for Non-
Executive/ Independent Directors of the Company. The Codes of Conduct have been circulated to the Board and 
Senior Management and the compliance of the same has been affirmed by them. A declaration signed by the 
Director in this regard is given at the end of this Report. 
 
c. Subsidiary Companies, Joint Venture and Associate Companies: Not Applicable 
 

http://www.ainvest.co.in/
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d. Sexual Harassment Policy 
 
The Company has an anti-sexual harassment policy to promote a protective work environment. The complaints 
received by the Sexual Harassment Committee with details of action taken thereon are reviewed by the Audit 
Committee at its meeting held every quarter. The Company has a zero to clearance policy towards such 
complaints and the same is conveyed to the employees at the time of induction. 
 
e. Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report 
 
f. Certificate from PCS on Transfer/ Transmission 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (LODR) 2015 with the Stock Exchange a Company Secretary-in Practice 
have issued certificates on yearly basis, confirming due compliance of share transfer formalities by the 
Company. 
 
g. Share Reconciliation Audit 

 
As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out Reconciliation of Share Capital 
Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every 
quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchange. The Audit confirms that the total Listed and 
Paid-up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form and in 
physical form. 
 
h. Means of Communication 
 
The announcement of quarterly and annual financial results to the Stock Exchanges is followed by press release. 
The following information is promptly uploaded on the Company’s website viz. info@clubemerald.in   
 
i. Dematerialization of Shares as on 31stMarch, 2023 
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form with National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).  
 
The Company has arrangement with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) as well as Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for demat facility. 
 

Particulars No. of Shares % of Shares Capital 

Shares held in dematerialized form in CDSL 148736 2.97 

Shares held in dematerialized form in NSDL 4436834 88.63 

Physical 420630 8.40 
Total 5006200 100.00 

 
j. Share Transfer System: 
 
91.60% of the equity shares of the Company are in electronic form. Transfer of these shares is done through the 
depositories with no involvement of the Company. As regards transfer of shares held in physical form, the 
transfer documents can be lodged with the RTA at 9, Shiv Shakti Estate, J R Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba 
Hospital, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra-400011. 
Transfer of shares in physical form is normally processed within ten to twelve working days from the date of 
receipt, if the documents are complete in all respects. 
 
 
 

mailto:info@clubemerald.in
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k. Registered Transfer Agents (RTA): 
 
For share transfers and other communication relating to share certificates, Dividend and change of address: 
 
Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd, 

9, Shiv Shakti Estate, J R Boricha Marg, 

Opp. Kasturba Hospital, Lower Parel (East), 

Mumbai- 400011 

Tel: 022 - 23018261/ 2316761 

E Mail ID: support@purvashare.com 
 

SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION 

The Shareholders are kept informed by way of mailing of Annual Reports, notices of Annual General Meetings, 

Extra Ordinary General Meetings, Postal Ballots and other compliances under the Companies Act, 2013. The 

Company also regularly issues press releases and publishes quarterly results. 

Compliance officer Mr. Kapil Purohit 

Contact Address Plot No.366/15, Club Emerald Swastik Park, Near 
Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, 400071 

Phone: 022-25277504 

Financial Year 1stApril, 2022 to 31stMarch, 2023 

Date, time and venue of AGM 28th September, 2023 at 11.30 A.M through VC/OAVM 

Dates of Book Closure 22nd September, 2023 to 28th September, 2023 (Both days 
inclusive) 

Dividend Payment Date Not Applicable  

Financial Calendar Period Board Meeting to approve quarterly financial results 

Quarter ending 30th June, 2023 -Mid August, 2023 

Quarter ending 30th September, 2023 -Mid November, 2023 

Quarter ending 31st December, 2023 -Mid February, 2024 

Quarter ending 31st March, 2024 -End May, 2024 

 

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2023 

Notional Value of (Rs.) No. of Holders % to Total 
Holders 

Holding % to Holding 

1 to 500 
2315 91.32 173655 3.47 

501 - 1000 90 3.55 59190 1.18 

1001 - 2000 55 2.17 73686 1.47 

2001 - 3000 34 1.34 95059 1.9 

3001 - 4000 7 0.28 24451 0.49 

4001 - 5000 4 0.16 17399 0.35 

5001 - 10000 18 0.71 123979 2.48 

mailto:support@purvashare.com
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10001 and Above 12 0.47 4438781 88.67 

 
 
Market Price Data 
 
High, Low (based on monthly closing prices) and number of equity shares traded during each month in the year 
2022-23 on BSE Ltd. 
 
Month and Year Share Price High 

 

Share Price Low 

April-2022 115.00 93.00 

May-2022 92.80 73.00 

June-2022 76.10 72.00 

July-2022 72.90 64.30 

August-2022 61.50 61.30 

September-2022 74.35 64.30 

October-2022 79.35 68.35 

November-2022 71.00 71.00 

December-2022 71.00 71.00 

January-2023 81.90 68.60 

February-2023 89.00 78.20 

March-2023 78.00 78.00 
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DISCLOSURES OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN 

REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND REGULATION 46(2)(B) TO (I) OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Regulation Compliance 
status 

Yes/No/N.A 

Compliance observed for the following: 

1 Board of Directors 17 Yes  Board Composition 

 Meeting of Board of Directors 
 Review of compliance reports 

 Plans for orderly succession for appointments 

 Code of Conduct 

 Fees / compensation 
 Minimum information to be placed before the Board 

 Compliance Certificate 

 Risk Assessment & Management 

 Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 

2 Audit Committee 18 Yes  Composition 

 Meeting of Audit Committee 

 Role of Audit Committee and review of information by the 

Committee 

3 Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 
19 Yes  Composition 

 Role of the Committee 

4 Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee 

20 Yes  Composition 

 Role of the Committee 

5 Risk Management 

Committee 

21 Not 

Applicable 

 The Company is not in the list of top 100  listed  entities by 

market capitalization 

6 Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes  Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees 
 Direct access to Chairperson of Audit Committee 

7 Related Party 

Transactions 

23 Yes  Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on 

Dealing with Related Party Transactions 

 Related Party Transactions of the Company are pursuant to 
contracts duly approved by the Audit Committee, Board of 

Directors and Shareholders of the Company 

8 Corporate Governance 

requirements with respect to 

subsidiary of listed Entity 

24 Not 

Applicable 
 At least one independent director on the board of directors of 

the listed entity shall be a director on the board of directors of an 

unlisted material subsidiary, whether incorporated in India or 

not. 

9 Obligations with respect to 
Independent Directors 

25 Yes  Maximum Directorship and Tenure 
 Meeting of Independent Directors 
 Familiarization of Independent Directors 

10 Obligations with respect to 

Directors and Senior 

Management 

26 Yes  Memberships / Chairmanships in Committees 

 Affirmation with compliance to Code of Business Conduct 

and Ethics from Directors and Management Personnel 

 Disclosure of shareholding by Non-Executive Directors 

 Disclosures by Senior Management about potential conflicts 
of interest 

11 Other Corporate 

Governance requirements 

27 Yes  Compliance with discretionary requirements 
 Filing of quarterly compliance report on Corporate 

Governance 

12 Website 46(2)(b) to 

(i) 

Yes  Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent 

Directors 

 Composition of various Committees of Board of Directors 

 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and 

Management Personnel 

 Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower 

Policy 

 Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions 
 Details of familiarization programmes imparted to 
Independent Directors 
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’SREPORT 

 

To the Members of Emerald Leisures Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
OPINION 
 
We have audited the Financial Statements of Emerald Leisures Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended, and notes to the 
Financial Statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
BASIS FOR OPINION 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
 
EMPHASIS OF MATTER 
 
We draw your attention to Note No. 35 to the financial statement, which describes the impact on the financial 
statement of the Company with respect to restatement of financial statement for previous year ended March 31, 
2022. The Company has issued non-cumulative redeemable preference shares amounting to Rs. 4000.00 Lakhs 
and Rs. 1000 Lakhs during the financial year 2017-18 and 2019-20 respectively. The Company did not account for 
the fair value gain on initial recognition and interest cost associated with the issuance of these non-cumulative 
redeemable preference shares. During the current financial year, the Company has restated the opening numbers 
as at April 01, 2021 and as at March 31, 2022, and has appropriately accounted for the fair value gain and interest 
cost related to the redeemable preference shares. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
We also wish to draw your attention to Note No. 36 to the financial statements regarding impairment assessment 
of non-current financial assets performed by the Company. Based on the assessment performed, the management 
believes that there is no requirement for impairment of non-current financial assets and therefore no material 
adjustment is required to the financial statements (or results) for the year ended March 31, 2023. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter as well. 
 
KEY AUDIT MATTERS 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

DESCRIPTION OF KEY AUDIT MATTERS: 
 

Initial audit engagement How the matter was addressed in our audit 

A first-year audit engagement involves zero basing 
of key audit considerations like understanding of 

In view of the significance of the matter, we 
applied the following audit procedures in this 
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company specific risks, controls, policies and 
processes in order to develop an audit strategy and 
audit plan.  
This includes understanding the Company specific 
risks, controls, policies and processes in order to 
establish an audit strategy and audit plan. We have 
to perform initial audit procedures to obtain 
sufficient evidence regarding opening balances and 
selection and consistent application of accounting 
policies as per SA 510. Accordingly, it has been 
considered as a key audit matter. 

area, among others to obtain sufficient audit 
evidence:  

 Preparing a detailed transition plan to enable 
us analyses the strategy, risks, internal 
control measures and their impact on the 
Company's accounting policies.  

 Holding audit planning meetings to 
understand about the Company and its 
processes.  

 Reading presentations to the board and 
audit committee presentation for year ended 
31 March 2022 by the predecessor auditors.  

 Understanding the Company's significant 
accounting policies by reading audited 
financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2022.  

 Performing initial audit procedures to obtain 
sufficient evidence regarding opening 
balances and selection and consistent 
application of accounting policies as per SA 
510.  

 Based upon the knowledge gained through 
these procedures, we planned our risk 
assessment and determined the scope and 
coverage for the audit. 

Revenue recognition 

The Company has a unique business model, and its 
revenue comprises of individual transactions and 
also multiple streams of revenue with its members / 
customers. 
In accordance with Ind AS 115 (a) the membership 
fees are recognized over the effective membership 
period. 
The application of the accounting standard on 
revenue recognition, involves certain judgment 
relating to identification of distinct performance 
obligations, determination of transaction price of the 
identified performance obligations and the 
appropriateness of the basis used to recognize 
revenue over a period. 

Our procedures included the following: 

 Evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policy in accordance with Ind AS 
115 for membership contracts entered with 
customers. 

 Evaluating the design, testing the 
implementation and operating effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal controls over 
recognition of revenue. 

 Perform substantive testing throughout the 
period, by selecting samples of membership 
contracts entered during the year and 
verifying the underlying documents.  

 Assessing the adequacy of Company’s 
disclosures in accordance with the 
requirements of Ind AS 115 

 
OTHER INFORMATION 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements 
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes inequity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies(Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules,2015(as amended). 
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material is statement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professionals kept 
icism throughout the audit. 
 
We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraudishig her than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,wegive in the 
Annexure A; a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, were port that: 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2023 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023frombeing appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B. 

g) The Company did not pay any remuneration to its Directors; hence, in our opinion and according to the 
information and explanation provided to us, section 197 is not applicable to the company. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 
ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 31st March, 2023; 
iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company; 
iv) (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the financial statements, if any, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) the management has represented to us, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts to the Financial Statements, if any, no funds have been received by the Company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the information and explanation given to us and audit procedures performed as considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations made by the management and as mentioned under sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) 
(b)above contain any material misstatement. 

v) The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year 
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vi) The requirement to the use of accounting software for maintaining Company’s books of account which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is deferred to financial years commencing on or after 
April1,2023, therefore reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules,2014 is not 
applicable for financial year ended on March 31,2023. 

 
 

For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 101118W/W100682 

 

SD/- 

Shriniwas Shriram Gadgil 

Partner

Membership Number: 120570 

 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May 2023 
UDIN: 23120570BGUEGD5299 
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Annexure- “A “to the Independent Auditors’ report 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our 

report on even date: 

i.  

a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of Property, Plant & Equipment. 

(B)The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and accordingly, the 

requirement to report on clause 3(i) (a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b) The Property, Plant & Equipment of the Company have not been physically verified by the Management 

during the year.  Accordingly, the discrepancies, if any, could not be ascertained and therefore, we are unable 

to comment on whether the discrepancies, if any, have been properly dealt with in the books of account. 

c)The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 2 on Property, Plant & Equipment 

to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible 

assets during the year. 

e) According to the information and explanations provided to us there are no proceedings have been initiated or 

are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 

Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there under. Hence reporting under clause 3(i) (e) 

of the order is not applicable. 

ii.  

a) No physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the Management during the year. Hence, we 

are unable to comment on the appropriateness of the coverage and procedures of inventory verification and on 

dealing of discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory in the books of accounts. 

b)According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not been sanctioned working 

capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during the year, in aggregate, from banks 

orfinancialinstitutionsonthebasisofsecurityofcurrentassets.Hencereportingunderclause3(ii)(b)ofthe order is not 

applicable. 

iii. The company during the year has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or 

granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or any other parties. Hence reporting under Clause (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c),(iii)(d),(iii)(e)and(iii)(f), of 

the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or 

security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of 

the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the 

public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent 

notified. 

vi. The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company. 

vii.  

a) According to the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory 

dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service 

tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate 

authorities. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by 

us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any 

dispute. 
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viii. In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and records examined 

by us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during they earin the tax assessment sunder the 

Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the order is not applicable. 

ix.  

a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to 

us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 

thereon to any lender as at the balance sheet date. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 

report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

government or any government authority. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books of 

account and records of the company, we report that term loans were applied for the purposes for which the loans 

were obtained. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on 

an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that funds raised on short-term 

basis have, prima facie, not been used for long-term purposes by the company during the year. 

e) The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under clause 

3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable. 

f) The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under clause 

3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable. 

x.  

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt 

instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company. 

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly or 

optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause3(x)(b)of the Order are 

not applicable to the Company. 

xi.  

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company 

noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, report in the form ADT-4 as specified under sub-section(12) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act has not been filed. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (xi) (b) of the order is not applicable. 

c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and 

explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints 

received by the company during the year. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 

provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of 

Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
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statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures specified Under Section 133 of the Act, read 

with Rule7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. 

xiv.  

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, though the company is required to have an internal audit 

system under section 138 of the Act, it does not have the same established for the year. 

b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. Hence reporting under 

clause 3(xiv)(b) is not applicable. 

xv. The Company has not entered in to any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 

with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi.  

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, was port 

that the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year. 

Therefore, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (b) of the order is not applicable. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the  

Company is not Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 

India, hence reporting underclause3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable. 

d) Based on information and explanation given to us and as represented by the management, the Group 

does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during current financial year and had not incurred cash losses 

during immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation by statutory auditors during the year hence reporting under clause 3 (xviii) 

of the order is not applicable. 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 

and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 

accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 

based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 

causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 

one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 

the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit report and we 

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. Also refer to Emphasis of 

Matter section in our in Main Audit Report. 

xx.  

a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly, reporting 

under paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

b) The Company does not have any ongoing projects in accordance with the requirements of CSR guidelines 

and hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

 

For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 101118W/W100682 
 

SD/- 

Shriniwas Shriram Gadgil 

Partner

Membership Number: 120570 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May 2023 
UDIN: 23120570BGUEGD5299 
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Annexure-“B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our 

report on even date: 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Emerald Leisures 

Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date.  

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

theessentialcomponentsofinternalcontrolsstatedintheGuidanceNoteonAuditofInternalFinancialControlsOver 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the 

Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 

Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain sufficient 

appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding there liability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial 

Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's 

internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 

have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 

to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 

controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become in adequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 101118W/W100682 

 

SD/- 

Shriniwas Shriram Gadgil 

Partner

Membership Number: 120570 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May 2023 
UDIN: 23120570BGUEGD5299 

 



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

I ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 6,497.82                        6,794.36                     7,127.92                     
(b) Financial Assets
        (i) Investments 3.1 153.14                           204.45                        254.20                        
       (ii) Other Financial Assets 3.2 30.87                              30.91                          30.71                          
(c) Deferred tax  assets (net) 4 -                                 17.21                          17.21                          
(d) Other non current assets 5 43.84                              69.64                          68.97                          
Sub-Total - Non-Current Assets  6,725.67                        7,116.57                     7,499.00                     

2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 6 70.73                              74.13                          75.92                          
(b) Financial Assets
      (i) Trade receivables 7.1 96.18                              83.09                          78.55                          
      (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 40.73                              36.95                          25.51                          
      (iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 7.3 20.00                              20.00                          30.66                          
      (iv) Loans 7.4 3.35                                1.82                            2.51                            
      (v) Other financial assets 7.5 8.89                                4.60                            1.11                            
(c) Current Tax Assets  8 43.90                              41.85                          47.15                          
(d) Other current assets 9 19.03                              14.89                          9.00                            
Sub-Total - Current Assets 302.81                           277.33                        270.40                        

TOTAL - ASSETS 7,028.48                    7,393.90                 7,769.40                 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 10 250.31                           250.31                        250.31                        
(b) Other equity 11 (6,978.66)                       (5,965.69)                    (4,734.98)                    
Sub-Total - Equity (6,728.35)                       (5,715.38)                    (4,484.67)                    

2 LIABLITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
         (i) Borrowings 12.1 5,027.68                        5,159.65                     4,895.68                     
         (ii) Other financial liabilities 12.2 723.52                           660.94                        598.05                        
(b) Provisions 13 16.68                              13.45                          14.01                          
Sub-Total - Non-Current Liabilities 5,767.87                        5,834.04                     5,507.74                     

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
         (i) Borrowings 14.1 6,414.58                        4,785.72                     4,167.89                     
        (ii) Trade Payables
            (a) Total outstanding dues of micro
                 enterprises and small enterprises 14.2                                      -                                   -                                   -  

            (a) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.2 151.93                           167.39                        86.17                          

        (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 14.3 342.54                           1,237.21                     1,350.91                     
(b) Other current liabilities 15 1,074.63                        1,080.18                     1,135.49                     
(c) Provisions 16 5.28                                4.73                            5.88                            

Sub-Total - Current Liabilities 7,988.96                        7,275.24                     6,746.34                     

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,028.48                    7,393.90                 7,769.40                 
Significant Accounting Policies 1

0.00                                (0.00)                           0.00                            
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For P G BHAGWAT LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants M/S EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
FRN: 101118W / W100682

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
Shriniwas Shreeram Gadgil Nikhil Mehta Rajesh Loya Vedashri Chaudhari
Partner CEO & Director CFO & Director Company Secretary

Membership No. 120570 (DIN:00252482) (DIN:00252470)
Membership No.: 

A55742
UDIN : 23120570BGUEGD5299
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/05/2023 Date : 30/05/2023

 As at 31st March, 2023 PARTICULARS Note
 As at 31st March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01st April, 
2021

Restated 



(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Particulars Note For the year ended 
31 March, 2023

For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

Restated

I Income
(a) Revenue from operations 17 1,475.37                      857.00                        
(b) Other Income 18 13.21                           15.10                          

Total Income (I) 1,488.59                      872.10                        

II Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 19 244.47                         159.77                        
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 
and stock-in-trade 20 3.40                             1.79                            

(c) Employee benefits expense 21 174.26                         151.90                        
(d) Finance Cost 22 1,284.96                      1,112.53                     
(e) Depreciation & amortisation expense 2 309.35                         335.41                        
(f) Other expenses 23 469.15                         341.96                        

Total expenses  (II) 2,485.58                      2,103.36                     

III Profit / (Loss) before exceptional  items and tax  (I-II) (996.99)                        (1,231.26)                    

IV Exceptional items -                               -                              

V Profit / (Loss) before tax (III-IV) (996.99)                        (1,231.26)                    

VI Tax expense:
(a) Current tax -                               -                              
(b) Deferred tax 17.21                           -                              

VII Profit / (Loss) for the period (V-VI) (1,014.20)                     (1,231.26)                    

VIII Other Comprehensive Income                              1.22                              0.55 
A      (i) Items that will not be reclassified  to profit or loss
            (a) Re-measurements of the defined benefit 
                 liabilities/(asset)                              1.22                              0.55 

        (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 
             to profit or loss                                  -                                   -   

B      (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                  -                                   -   
        (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 
             profit or loss                                  -                                   -   

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VIII) (1,012.98)                     (1,230.71)                    

X Earnings per share (of Rs. 5/- each): 30
(a) Basic (20.26) (24.59)
(b) Diluted (20.26) (24.59)

X.i Number of Shares used in computing earning per share 5006200 5006200

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For P G BHAGWAT LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants M/S EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
FRN: 101118W / W100682

sd/- sd/- sd/-
Shriniwas Shreeram Gadgil Nikhil Mehta Rajesh Loya Vedashri Chaudhari
Partner CEO & Director CFO & Director Company Secretary

Membership No. 120570 (DIN:00252482) (DIN:00252470) Membership No.: A55742

UDIN : 23120570BGUEGD5299
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/05/2023 Date : 30/05/2023

EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity Share Capital
Particulars Amount 
Balance at April 01, 2021 250.31                    

Shares Issued during the year -                          
Balance at March 31, 2022 250.31                    

Shares Issued during the year
Balance at March 31, 2023 250.31                    

(b) Other Equity

Items of other 
comprehensive income

Retained Earnings

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve
Revaluation 

Reserve
Re-measurements of 
the defined benefit

Opening Balance as on April 01, 2021 (10,039.32)             64.27                  2,852.25             9.59                                 (7,113.21)                   
Fair value Gain on issue of Non-cummulative redeemable Preference Shares 3,072.28                 -                      -                      -                                   3,072.28                    
Interest on Non-cummulative redeemable Preference Shares (694.06)                  -                      -                      -                                   (694.06)                      
Opening Balance as on April 01, 2021 - Restated (7,661.10)               64.27                  2,852.25             9.59                                 (4,734.98)                   

Profit/ (loss) for the year (1,231.26)               -                      -                      -                                   (1,231.26)                   
Other comprehensive income/(loss) -                          -                      -                      0.55                                 0.55                           
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2022 (8,892.35)               64.27                  2,852.25             10.15                               (5,965.69)                   

Profit/ (loss) for the year (1,014.20)               -                      -                      -                                   (1,014.20)                   
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 1.22                                 1.22                           
Balance at the End of reporting period i.e.  March 31, 2023 (9,906.55)               64.27                  2,852.25             11.37                               (6,978.66)                   

As per our report of even date attached
For P G BHAGWAT LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants M/S EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
FRN: 101118W / W100682

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
Shriniwas Shreeram Gadgil Nikhil Mehta Rajesh Loya Vedashri Chaudhari
Partner CEO & Director CFO & Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 120570 (DIN:00252482) (DIN:00252470) Membership No.: A55742
UDIN : 23120570BGUEGD5299
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/05/2023 Date : 30/05/2023

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Total



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (996.99)                              (1,231.26)                          
Adjustments for:

Fair value gain on investment (8.69)                             (11.82)                         
Depreciation and amortisation 309.35                     335.41                   
Finance costs - Loans 892.91                     756.07                   
Finance costs - Unwinding of membership deposit 103.66                     94.28                     
Finance costs - Unwinding of interest - pref. shares 288.39                     262.18                   
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (0.99)                        (0.92)                     
Interest received (1.93)                        (1.80)                     
Balances w/off 23.33                       1,606.03                  0.23                      1,433.63                 

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 609.04                               202.38                              
Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 3.40                         1.79                      
Trade receivables (13.09)                      (4.55)                     
Short-term loans and advances (5.83)                        (2.79)                     
Other non current assets 25.84                       (0.87)                     
Other current assets (29.51)                      (0.83)                     

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (15.45)                      81.22                     
Other current liabilities (899.24)                    (168.09)                 
Other non- current liabilities (41.08)                      (31.39)                   
Provisions 5.00                         (969.96)                              (1.15)                     (126.67)                             

(360.92)                              75.71                                
Cash flow from extraordinary items -                               -                              
Cash generated from operations (360.92)                              75.71                                
Net income tax (paid) / refunds -                               -                              

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) (360.92)                              75.71                                

B. Cash flow from investing activities
    Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances 
     Purchase of Fixed Assets (12.81)                                (1.85)                                
     Investments in Bank Deposits 1.93                                   12.46                               
     Investments in Corporate Bond Funds 60.00                                 61.56                               

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 49.12                                 72.18                                

C. Cash flow from financing activities
    Proceeds from long-term borrowings (420.37)                              1.79                                 
    Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 1,628.85                            617.84                             
    Finance cost (892.91)                              (756.07)                            

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 315.58                               (136.45)                             

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 3.78                                   11.44                                
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 36.95                                 25.51                                
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 40.73                                 36.95                                

As per our report of even date attached
For P G BHAGWAT LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants M/S EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
FRN: 101118W / W100682

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
Shriniwas Shreeram Gadgil Nikhil Mehta Rajesh Loya Vedashri Chaudhari
Partner CEO & Director CFO & Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 120570 (DIN:00252482) (DIN:00252470) Membership No.: A55742
UDIN : 23120570BGUEGD5299
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/05/2023 Date : 30/05/2023

For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

Restated

For the Period ended 
31 March, 2023



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

A. BACKGROUND

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 30, 2023.

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(i) Compliance with Ind AS 

(ii) Historical cost convention, accrual and going concern basis of accounting

3) Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model (note 2)

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 (iii) Current and non-current classification 

(iv) Use of estimates and judgments

C. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company is a Public limited Company, domiciled in India and registered with the ROC - Mumbai (Maharashtra) vide Corporate Identification 
number (CIN) L74900MH1948PLC006791. Registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand 
Hospital, off E. Express Highway, Chembur, Mumbai-400071. 

The Company is into the business of  Club and Sports Complex having sports facilities and other Hospitality Service.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods 
presented in the financial statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical 
cost basis, except for the following: 
1) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) Net defined benefit liability - Measured at present value of defined benefit obligations less fair value of plan assets 

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction, including duties and non-refundable 
taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for making them operational for their intended use and, in the case of 
qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing costs. Initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included if there is an obligation to restore it. First time issues of operating supplies for a new hotel property, consisting of linen and chinaware, glassware and 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair 
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those 
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in 
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described 
as follows:

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement 
date;

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in 
the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.  Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 
year and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year being reckoned from the reporting date.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting 
policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous 
evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 



An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model (note 2)

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and impairment losses recognised at the date of revaluation. Valuations 
are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its fair value.

The Company has also determined that revaluation as at 31 March 2023 does not differ materially from fair valuation during FY 2014-15. 
Accordingly, the Company has not revalued the property at 31 March 2023 again. 

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the 
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

Class of Assets Estimated Useful life
Freehold Land Not applicable
Building - Corporate Office 60 years
Hydraulic Pipeline 15 years
Plant & Machinery 5-15 years
Electric Installation 10 years
Office Equipment 2 years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 years
Computers 6 years

(ii) Intangible Assets

(iii) Financial Instruments

a. Financial assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Depreciation is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss so as to expense the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less 
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, as per the useful life prescribed in part “C” of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking 
into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological 
changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The assets’ estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effect of any changes 
in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Proportionate 
depreciation is charged for the addition and disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment made during the year.

included if there is an obligation to restore it. First time issues of operating supplies for a new hotel property, consisting of linen and chinaware, glassware and 
silverware (CGS) are capitalised and depreciated over their estimated useful life.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost including any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use and 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there 
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset, and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The 
Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or 
loss directly attributable transaction costs. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.



Subsequent Measurement

1. Financial assets at amortised cost

2. Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

3. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

De-Recognition

b. Financial liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Subsequent Measurement

De-Recognition

c. Impairment of financial assets

(iv) Income Taxes

(a) Current tax

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. 

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair 
value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held for collection of contractual cash flows where 
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income from these financial assets is included as a part of the 
Company’s income in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest rate method.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income if these financial assets are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on such debt 
instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship as well as interest income is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability 
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS-109 on Financial 
Instruments, requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. For trade receivables only, the Company recognises 
expected lifetime losses using the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS-109, from initial recognition of the receivables. For other financial 
assets (not being equity instruments or debt instruments measured subsequently at FVTPL) the expected credit losses are measured at the 12 
month expected credit losses or an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition.

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset. Where the 
Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is 
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value, through profit or loss directly 
attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (“EIR”) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The amortization done using the EIR method is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments with a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets is recognised as financial liability by the Company.

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred 
tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or 
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Current tax items are recognised in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 



(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(v) Inventories

(vi) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

(vii) Retirement and other employee benefits

a. Short-Term-Employment Benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Benefit Plans

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Real estate stock-in-trade valued at cost of land including the accretion to its value on change in its character from ‘capital assets' to 'trading 
assets’ plus development expenses incurred to date, or net realizable value, whichever is lower.

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted Average basis) or net 
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
selling expenses. Cost includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and 
other

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet and cash flow statement includes cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and demand 
deposits with an original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service) are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The accruals for 
employee entitlements to benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave represent the amounts which the Company has a present obligation 
to pay as a result of the employee’s services and the obligation can be measured reliably. The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted 
amounts based on current salary levels at the Balance Sheet date.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined 
benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that 
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of 
the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity 
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised 
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.



Defined Contribution Plans

c. Long Term Employee Benefits

(viii) Revenue recognition

Income From Operations

Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets

Membership Fees

Sharing Fees

Tower Rental & Maintenance

Other Allied Services

(ix) Borrowing Costs

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(ix) Earnings Per Share

(x) Provisions and Contingencies

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of 
 (a) present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

(b) present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation fund, which are defined contribution schemes, are recognised as an expense in the Profit 
and loss account in the period in which the contribution is due.

Long term employee benefits comprise of compensated absences and other employee incentives.  These are measured based on an actuarial 
valuation carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance sheet date unless they are insignificant.  Actuarial gains and losses and past 
service costs are recognised immediately in the Profit and loss account.  

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the 
promised goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or 
rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns and variable consideration on account of discounts and schemes offered by the Company as 
part of the contract.

Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room revenue, food and beverage 
sale and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet services have been 
provided as per the contract with the customer.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Rentals basically consist of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for tele-communication towers at the property. These contracts for rentals 
are generally of long-term in nature. Revenue is recognised in the period in which services are being rendered.

Sharing Fees income consists of income received from gain sharing arrangements for Spa and Gym fees. Revenue is recognised at the 
transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year adjusting the bonus element for all the reported period arising on account of issue of equity shares on rights and including potential equity 
shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax as adjusted for 
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share.

A Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources is 
expected to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.  

Membership fee income majorly consists of Club membership fees. In respect of performance obligations satisfied over a period of time, revenue 
is recognised at the allocated transaction price on a time-proportion basis.
Refundable Membership Fees received are not credited to Profit and Loss but are recognised as financial liability and measured at amortised cost. 
The same are shown as Refundable Membership Deposits under Financial Liabilities in the Balance Sheet .

In relation to laundry income, communication income and other allied services, the revenue has been recognised by reference to the time of 
service rendered.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.



(c') a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognized, nor disclosed.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 3.1- Non-Current Investments

Investment in Mutual Funds
Unquoted
 At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
2,26,683.150 (Previous year-2,26,683.150) Units of Aditya Birla Sun life Corporate Bond 
Fund of Face Value of Rs 10/- each

153.13            204.44                254.19                

153.13            204.44                254.19                
Investment in equity instruments
Unquoted
 At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
1000 (Previous year-1000) shares of Rupee Co Op Bank Limited of the 
face value of Rs. 25/- each               0.25                   0.25                   0.25 
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments               0.24                   0.24                   0.24 

              0.01                   0.01                   0.01 

Total 153.14            204.45                254.20                

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 153.38            204.69                254.44                
Aggregate amount of diminuition in the value of investments 0.24                0.24                    0.24                    

Particulars
As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated

As at 31 
March, 2023

As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 3.2 Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

 Financial assets at amortised cost 

 Bank balances with original maturity of more than 12 months *                      8.00                     8.00                   8.00 

 Security Deposits                    21.24                   21.24                 20.84 
 Other Deposits                      0.10                     0.10                   0.10 
 Interest accrued on deposit                       1.53                     1.57                   1.77 

 Total  30.87                   30.91                  30.71                

Note 4 Deferred tax assets
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

     Deferred tax assets (net) * -                       17.21                  17.21                

 Total  -                       17.21                  17.21                

 * Deferred tax written off as it is no longer recoverable. 

 Particulars  As at 31 March, 
2023 

As at 31 March, 
2022

Restated

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

   Balances with government authorities 43.84                   69.64                  68.97                

 Total  43.84                   69.64                  68.97                

 * Above Fixed Deposit includes Rs. 8 lakhs of Fixed Deposit with Sangli Urban Co-Operative Bank Ltd which is pledged 
against Bank Guarantee.  

Note - 5 Other non current assets



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars  As at 31 March, 
2023 

As at 31 March, 
2022

Restated

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

    Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading) * 37.54                   37.54                 37.54                   
    Food and Beverages 6.34                     6.09                   5.73                     
    Operating Supplies 26.85                   30.50                 32.64                   

Total 70.73                   74.13                 75.92                   

Note- 7.1 Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Particulars As at 31 March, 

2023
As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated

Trade receivables                     96.18                  83.09                     78.55 
Receivables from related parties                          -                          -                            -   

Of which
 - considered good                     96.18                  83.09                     78.55 
 - considered doubtful                          -                          -                            -   
 - which have significant increase in credit risk                          -                          -                            -   
 - credit impaired                          -                          -                            -   

Impairment allowance                          -                          -                            -   

                    96.18                  83.09                     78.55 

Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023

FY 22-23
Particulars 6 months -1  Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

Due Not Due
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 27.65                   -                    9.23                     5.41                1.28                52.62                    96.18                 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -                       -                    -                       -                  -                  -                       -                    

Total 27.65                   -                    9.23                     5.41                1.28                52.62                    96.18                 

As at 31 March 2022

FY 21-22
Particulars 6 months -1  Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total

Due Not Due
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 22.04                   -                    1.42                     3.03                6.63                49.97                    83.09                 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired -                       -                    -                       -                  -                  -                       -                    

Total 22.04                   -                    1.42                     3.03                6.63                49.97                    83.09                 

Notes - 

(ii) The above balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation and consequent adjustments, if any.

Note - 7.2 Cash and cash equivalents
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
 As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

   Cash on hand                       8.28                  30.19                     22.82 
   Balances with banks

  - On current accounts                     32.45                    6.76                       2.68 

Total                     40.73                  36.95                     25.51 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 

(i) Trade receivable does not consist any amounts due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from 
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Note - 6 Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

* Real estate stock-in-trade (Swastik Textiles Division) of Rs.3,754,229/- (as at 31st March, 2022, Rs.3,754,229/-) 
has been valued at cost of land including the accretion to its value on change of its character from ‘capital assets’ to 
‘trading assets’ plus development expenses incurred. The plots and area of these real estate stocks in trade (land) is 
as under:

Both the above aggregate 12376 Sq 
Mtrs.

i. Plot No CTS 366, area 2372 Sq Meters (Mani garage) - Encroached
ii. Plot No CTS 366 / 6 area 10,004.1 Sq Meters - Encroached by slum & 
unauthorized occupants



Note -7.3 Other Bank Balances 
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
 As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of  less than 12 
months

              20.00             20.00               30.66 

Total 20.00                   20.00                 30.66                   

Note-7.4 Loans - Current
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
 As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

    Unsecured, considered good
    Loans and advances to employees            3.35          1.82            2.51 

Total 3.35                     1.82                   2.51                     

Note-7.5 Other current financial assets
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
 As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

Financial assets at amortised cost
    Advance to suppliers                       8.89                    4.60                       1.11 

Considered good                          -                          -                            -   
Considered doubtful                          -                          -                            -   
Less: Provision for doubtful advances                          -                          -                            -   

Total 8.89                        4.60                      1.11                        

Note-8 Current Tax Assets
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
 As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

     Advance Tax                     43.90                  41.85                     47.15 

Total                     43.90                  41.85                     47.15 

Note- 9 Other Current Assets
Particulars As at 31 March, 

2023
As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated

     Prepaid expenses                     15.54                  13.30                       6.27 
     Balances with government authorities                       3.49                    1.59                       2.72 

Total 19.03                   14.89                 9.00                     



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 No. of Shares  Amount  No. of Shares  Amount  No. of Shares  Amount 

  Authorised 
Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each (LY Rs. 10/- each)         16,000,000            800.00           16,000,000           800.00             8,000,000           800.00 
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each (LY Rs. 
100/- each)*           6,000,000         6,000.00             6,000,000        6,000.00             6,000,000        6,000.00 

        22,000,000             6,800           22,000,000            6,800           14,000,000             6,800 
  Issued, Subscribed  and Fully Paid up
  Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each (LY Rs.10/- each)           5,006,200            250.31             5,006,200           250.31             2,503,100           250.31 

There is no equity component of redeemable preference shares as on March 31, 2023. The entire amount is pertaining to liability component and the same is reflected in
financial liabilities under long term borrowings. (note 12.1)

a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

b) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,006,200          250.31           2,503,100            250.31          2,503,100            250.31          
Shares issued / subscribed during the year -                   -                -                      -               -                     -               
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,006,200          250.31           5,006,200            250.31          2,503,100            250.31          

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

 No. of Shares 
% of share 

holding  No. of Shares 
% of share 

holding  No. of Shares 
% of share 

holding

  Equity shares of Rs. 5/- ( LY Rs.10/-) each fully paid up held by -
  Jaydeep Vinod Mehta 864,450            8.63% 864,450               8.63% 432,225              17.27%
  Nikhil Vinod Mehta 864,440            8.63% 864,440               8.63% 432,220              17.27%
  Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 864,440            8.63% 864,440               8.63% 432,220              17.27%
  Chetan Jashwant Mehta 864,440            8.63% 864,440               8.63% 432,220              17.27%
  AYAY Commodity Services Pvt. Ltd. 460,230            4.60% 460,230               4.60% 230,115              9.19%

  Total 3,918,000          39.13% 3,918,000            39.13% 1,959,000            78.26%

d) Details of shares held by promoters:

Promoter Name
No. of shares at 
the beginning 

of the year

 No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year 

 % of Total 
Shares 

 % of change 
during the 

year 

  Jaydeep Vinod Mehta 864,450 864,450 17.27% -               
  Nikhil Vinod Mehta 864,440 864,440 17.27% -               
  Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 864,440 864,440 17.27% -               
  Chetan Jashwant Mehta 864,440 864,440 17.27% -               

* Preference shares include 50,00,000 (Previous year : 50,00,000) Non Cumulative, Non Convertible, Non Participating, Redeemable Preference shares of face value 
of Rs. 100/- each. The preference shares carry 10% Dividend and are redeemable at par after 10 years from the date of issue. 

e) The aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash on the last five years immediately 
preceding the balance sheet date is NIL.

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Restated

Particulars

As at 01 April, 2021
Restated

1) The company has only one class of Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 5/-. Each shareholder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of 
liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining balance of assets if any, after preferential payments and to have a share 
in surplus  assets of the Company, proportionate to their individual shareholding in the paid up equity capital of the Company.

2) The shareholders of the company through a resolution passed in the meeting held on 23.04.2021 approved the subdivision of the equity share of the company from 
Face value of Rs. 10/- each into two equity shares of Face value of Rs. 5/- each. The record date of subdivision was 25.05.2021.

As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 2021
Restated

Note 10 - Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 2021
Restated



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 2021
Restated

64.27                   64.27                      64.27                    
-                      -                          -                        
-                      -                          -                        

64.27                        64.27                            64.27                         

2,852.25              2,852.25                  2,852.25               
-                      -                          -                        
-                      -                          -                        

2,852.25                   2,852.25                       2,852.25                    

(8,892.35)             (7,661.10)                (10,039.32)            
-                      -                          3,072.28               
-                      -                          (694.06)                 

(1,014.20)                  (1,231.26)                      -                             
Closing balance (9,906.55)                  (8,892.35)                      (7,661.10)                   

(d) Other comprehensive income
Opening balance 10.15                        9.59                             1.76                           

     Add: Movement during year 1.22                          0.55                             7.84                           
Closing balance 11.37                        10.15                            9.59                           

(6,978.67)                  (5,965.69)                      (4,734.98)                   

Less: Utilised during the year
Closing balance

 (b) Revaluation Reserve - Land 
Opening balance

Fairvalue Gain on issue of Non-cummulative redeemable Preference Shares
Interest on Non-cummulative redeemable Preference Shares

Add: Additions during the year 

Note 11 - Other Equity

Particulars

(a) Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance
Add: Additions during the year 

Less: Utilised during the year
Closing balance

 (c) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss  
Opening balance 

     Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year

Total



 b) Revaluation Reserve: The revaluation reserve is credited on account of revaluation of freehold land. It is not available fordistribution as dividend.
c) Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to General reserve and payment of dividend.
d) Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on remeasurement of defined benefits obligation.
    The above reserves will be utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 12.1 Non-Current Borrowings 
 As at 31 March, 

2023 
As at 31 March, 2022

Restated
As at 01 April, 2021

Restated

  Unsecured
  Redeemable Preference Shares (Refer Note (i) Below) 3,172.34                   2,883.95                       2,621.77                    

                   1,855.33                        2,275.70                      2,273.91 

                   5,027.68                        5,159.65                      4,895.68 

(ii) Term Loans : 

The loan is secured as follows :

3) There has been no continuing default as on the balance sheet date in repayment of any of the above loans and interest thereon.
4) The company has used the borrowings from bank for the purpose for which it was taken as at the balance sheet date.

As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 2021
Restated

                 723.52                      660.94                    598.05 

723.52                         660.94                              598.05                           

As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 2021
Restated

  Gratuity 12.41                        10.56                            10.94                         
  Leave encashment 4.27                          2.89                             3.07                           

16.68                        13.45                            14.01                         

 Particulars 

a) Capital Redemption Reserve: Capital Redemption Reserve was created on redemption of Preference shares in earlier years. / As per Companies Act, 
2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the 
nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 
69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

   (ii) Land & Building located at Chembur Mumbai
   (iii) Commercial Property located at Fort Mumbai

   Secured 
   Term loan from Bank (Refer Note (ii) Below) 

Total 

Note:
(i) Terms of the Preference Shares are as follows :
Preference shares include 50,00,000 (Previous year : 50,00,000) Non Cumulative, Non Convertible, Non Participating, Redeemable Preference shares of face value of Rs. 100/- each. The preference shares 
carry 10% Dividend and are redeemable at par after 10 years from the date of issue. 

a) Term Loan includes loan from an NBFC amounting to Rs. 23,05,44,029/- (Previous year : 27,16,74,789/-) carrying floating interest rate linked to the NBFC's Internal reference rate. Total amount outstanding 
as on 31.03.2023 is Rs. 23,05,44,029/- out of which Rs. 4,44,53,849/- has been shown under Other Current Financial Liabilities as current maturity of long term loan. The first loan is repayable in 8 years in 
equal monthly installments starting from 16th August, 2018 while the second loan is repayable 4 years, first 12 months is moratorium and then in equal monthly installments starting from 05th October, 2021.

1) Primary Security : Hypothecation on all present & future current assets of the company.
2) Collateral Security : 
    (i) Residential Property at Dadar East Mumbai

b) During the year, Company received term loan under ECGS Rs. 4,35,52,000/- which is included in above term loan. The loan is repayable in 6 years, first 24 months is moratorium and then in equal monthly 
installments starting from 15th September, 2023.

  Provision for Employee Benefits

Total

Note 12.2 Other financial liabilities (Non Current)

  Refundable Membership Deposits

Total

Note 13 Provisions (Long term)

Particulars

Particulars



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 14.1 Borrowings (Current)

Particulars
As at 31 March, 

2023
As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated

As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated

  Loans repayable on demand (Unsecured)*

   From related parties                4,000.90           2,620.75           2,189.50 
   From others               1,969.14           1,703.61           1,561.00 

   Current Maturities of Long Term Loan                  444.54              461.36              417.39 

 Total                    6,414.58                4,785.72                4,167.89 

* Above loans carry interest rate ranging from 8% to 12%.

 Particulars  As at 31 March, 
2023 

 As at 31 March, 
2022

Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

 Creditors for Expenses 
 - Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(refer note 26) 

                             -                             -                             -   

 - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

                      151.93                   167.39                     86.17 

 Total 151.93                      167.39                  86.17                    

(i) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” 
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.
(ii) The above balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation and consequent adjustments, if any.

Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023

Particulars 1-2 Years 

Due Not Due
(i) MSME                              -   -                        -                        
(ii) Other                     107.386 -                        1.851                    
(iii) Disputed Dues – MSME                              -   -                        -                        
(iv) Disputed Dues – Other                              -   -                        -                        
(v) Unbilled Dues                               -   -                        -                        

Total 107.386                    -                        1.851                    

As at 31 March 2022

Note - 14.2 Trade Payables

31st March 2023

Less than 1 year



Particulars 1-2 Years 

Due Not Due
(i) MSME                              -   -                        -                        
(ii) Other                       78.722 -                        1.974                    
(iii) Disputed Dues – MSME                              -   -                        -                        
(iv) Disputed Dues – Other                              -   -                        -                        
(v) Unbilled Dues                               -   -                        -                        

Total 78.722                      -                        1.974                    

* The above ageing is subject to reconciliation.

Note 14.3 Other Current Financial Liabilities 
 Particulars  As at 31 March, 

2023 
 As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
   Interest accrued and due on borrowings                       342.54                1,237.21                1,350.91 

 Total                       342.54                1,237.21                1,350.91 

 Particulars  As at 31 March, 
2023 

 As at 31 March, 
2022

Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

 Creditors for capital expenditure                    53.99                55.55                51.88 
 Advance received from customers                    38.11                33.62                35.29 
 Refundable Membership Income received in advance                   364.33              430.49              503.53 
 Non-Refundable Membership fees received in advance                   275.37              255.31              256.82 
 Deferred Revenue (Non- refundable memberships)                   248.84              233.41              240.23 
 Statutory dues payable                    76.47                53.77                30.82 
 Other current liabilities                     17.52                18.04                16.93 

 Total 1,074.63                   1,080.18               1,135.49               

Particulars
 As at 31 March, 

2023 
 As at 31 March, 

2022
Restated 

 As at 01 April, 
2021

Restated 

  Provision for Employee Benefits
 Gratuity                      2.06                  2.51                  3.61 
 Leave Encashment                      3.21                  2.22                  2.27 

 Total 5.28                         4.73                      5.88                      

Note 16 Provisions (Short term)

Note 15- Other current liabilities 

31st March 2022

Less than 1 year



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note- 17 Revenue from operations
Particulars For the Period ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
Restated

Room income 502.07                        229.18                       
Banquets and Restaurant income 633.06                        388.75                       
Membership Sales & AMC Income 224.27                        197.44                       
Guest Fees & Other Club Income 33.92                          8.14                           
Other operating income 82.06                          33.49                         

Total 1,475.37                     857.00                       

Note- 18 Other Income
Particulars For the Period ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
Restated

Interest Income
- on bank deposits 1.93                            1.80                           
- on other deposits -                              0.57                           
- on income tax refunds 0.58                            -                             

Net gain arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL 9.71                            11.82                         
Miscellaneous income 0.99                            0.92                           

Total 13.21                          15.10                         

Note- 19 Cost of Material Consumed
Particulars For the Period ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
Restated

Purchase of stock-in trade (Consumption)
Laundry expenses                           12.24                             8.43 
Liquor expenses                           13.19                           12.42 
Other operating supplies                         219.97                         140.57 

Stock loss / damage                             2.46                             0.14 

Total 247.86                        161.56                       

Note- 20 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
 Particulars  For the Period ended 

31 March, 2023 
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
Restated

Inventories at the end of the year:
Stock-in-trade -Material for consumption 33.19                          36.58                         
Stock-in-trade -Land 37.54                          37.54                         

70.73                          74.13                         
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade -Material for consumption 36.58                          38.38                         
Stock-in-trade -Land 37.54                          37.54                         

74.13                          75.92                         

Net (increase) / decrease                             3.40                             1.79 

Note- 21 Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the Period ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
Restated

Salaries and wages 159.18                        140.11                       
Contributions to provident and other funds 2.57                            2.96                           
Gratuity to staff/workers 4.33                            3.95                           
Leave Encashment 3.20                            1.69                           
Staff welfare expenses 4.98                            3.19                           

Total 174.26                        151.90                       

Note- 22 Finance costs



Particulars For the Period ended 
31 March, 2023

For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

Restated
Interest expense on borrowings

Secured Loans                         305.34                         308.26 
Unsecured Loans                         587.56                         447.82 

Other interest costs
Unwinding of interest on Non-cumulative redeemable Preference Shares                         288.39                         262.18 
Unwinding of interest on membership deposits                         103.66                           94.28 

Total 1,284.96                     1,112.53                    

Note- 23 Other expenses
Particulars For the Period ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
Restated

Operating expenses
Banquet Expenses                           22.20                           14.26 
Repairs to Buildings                             0.52                             0.50 
Repairs to Machinery                           10.76                             7.15 
Repairs to Others                             6.00                             9.19 
Fuel, Power and Light                         151.69                           94.56 
Commission, Brokerages & Sharings                           58.88                           27.41 

General expenses
Licence Fees                           10.30                             8.21 
Rates & taxes                           49.72                           48.28 
Insurance                             5.52                             6.55 
Advertising and Publicity                             0.60                             0.50 
Printing and Stationery                             0.03                             0.14 
Telephone & Postage                             2.39                             2.72 
Legal & Professional charges                             5.37                           18.19 
Payment to Auditors (Refer note below)                             2.50                             3.00 
Bank Charges                           10.74                             8.95 
Duties & taxes                           27.79                           14.39 
Outsourced Support Services                           51.08                           30.59 
Directors' fees                             0.13                             0.13 
Travelling and Conveyance                             2.06                             1.61 
Security Expenses                             7.90                           11.52 
Loss on Sale of Asset                             1.03                             0.26 
Sundry balances written off                           23.33                             0.23 
Software charges                             4.63                             7.84 
Miscellaneous Expenses                           13.66                           24.87 
Prior Period Expense                             0.33                             0.90 

Total 469.15                        341.96                       

Notes : 
1. Payment to Auditors

Particulars For the Period ended 
31 March, 2023

For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

Restated

  Statutory Audit 2.00                            2.00                           
  Tax Audit 0.50                            0.50                           
  VAT & Other Matters -                              0.50                           

Total 2.50                            3.00                           



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note - 24 Income Tax

Particulars  As at 31st
March, 2023

(Rs.) 

 As at 31st
March, 2022

(Rs.) 

(a) Income Tax recognised in profit or loss
Current Tax:
In respect of current year -                   -                   
In respect of prior years -                   -                   

Deferred tax:
In respect of current year 17.21                -                   
In respect of prior years -                   -                   
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year
relating to continuing operations 

17.21                -                   

(b) Income tax recognised in other Comprehensive income
Deferred tax:
Remeasurements gains and losses on post employment benefits -                   -                   

Income tax expense reported in the statement of other
comprehensive income

-                   -                   

(c) Deferred tax

Deferred tax relates to the following: 
Deferred tax asset / (liability)

Balance sheet Balance sheet

 As at 31st
March, 2023

(Rs.) 

 As at 31st
March, 2022

(Rs.) 
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets -                   17.21                
Provision for doubtful debts and advances -                   -                   
Gratuity -                   -                   
Leave encashment -                   -                   

Total -                   17.21                
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets -                   -                   

Total -                   -                   
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) -                   17.21                
Deferred tax expense/(income)
- Recognised in the statement of profit and loss 17.21                -                   
- Recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income -                   -                   
- Recognised in opening reserve under statement of changes in 
equity

-                   -                   



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 25 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

A.         Contingent Liabilities: 
As at 31st

March, 2023
(Rs.)

As at 31st
March, 2022

(Rs.)

Contingent liabilities -                  -                      

B.          Commitments:
As at 

31stMarch, 
2023(Rs.)

As at 31stMarch, 
2022(Rs.)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for

-                  -                      

Note - 26 Dues to micro and small enterprises - As per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED’ Act)

This information has been determined to the extent such parties  have been identified on the basis of information  available with the company

Particulars
As at 31st

March, 2023
(Rs.)

As at 31st
March, 2022

(Rs.)
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year -                   -                      

Amount of Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as the end of the year -                   -                      

Amount of interest paid under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

-                   -                      

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not 
paid).

-                   -                      

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of year. -                   -                      

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
year.

-                   -                      

Note - 27 Earnings per share

Particulars
As at 31st

March, 2023
As at 31st

March, 2022
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per
share
Weighted average number of basic equity shares                50.06                   50.06 

Weighted average number of diluted equity shares                50.06                   50.06 

Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share
Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders          (1,014.20)             (1,231.26)

Basic earnings per equity share of INR 10 each               (20.26)                  (24.59)
Diluted earnings per equity share of INR 10 each               (20.26)                  (24.59)

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of intimation received from the 
suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. There are overdue amounts 
payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006, as at 
the reporting date or anytime during the year, amount is outstanding because of pending reconciliation of ledgers due to rate 
overcharged in bills and hence no interest has been paid or payable.



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 28 Related party transactions

A. Related Parties (As identified by the Management In the Light of Requirements of Ind AS 24)

1. Key Management Personnel
(a) Rajesh Loya
(b) Jashwant Mehta
(c) Nikhil Mehta
(d) Jaydeep Mehta
(e') Chetan Mehta

2. Other Related Parties 
(a) Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited
(b) Juhu Resorts and Development Private Limited
(c) Neptune Resorts & Developers Private Limited
(d) Ahmednagar Finance Ltd.
(e) Techno Equity Broking Private Limited
(f) Techno Property Developers Private Limited
(g) Juhu Tours & Travels Private Limited
(h) Maneesh Taparia
(i) Amit Vardhaman Shah
(j) Techno Finvestrade (India) Private Limited
(k) Techno Realtors Private Limited

B. Transactions with Related Parties:
Details of transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2023

Description
Key 

managerial 
personnel 

Others
Key 

managerial 
personnel 

Others

 Purchase of Services 
  - Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited                 -          0.21                -                              -   

 Interest Expense 
  - Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited                 -      131.02                -                         72.17 
  - Techno Property Developers Private Limited                 -          9.82                -                         28.38 
  - Techno Realtors Private Limited                 -        19.52                -                         42.24 
  - Neptune Resorts And Development Pvt Ltd                 -             -                  -                           0.36 
  - Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited                 -      190.80                -                       123.43 
  - Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta            27.33           -               1.00                            -   
  - Chetan Jashwant Mehta              2.11           -                  -                              -   

 Software AMC 
  - Techno Finvestrade (India) Private Limited                 -          3.43                -                           6.90 

 Reimbursement of expenses paid 
  - Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited                 -          0.39                -                           0.04 
  - Chetan Jashwant Mehta              0.21           -               3.06                            -   
  - Nikhil Mehta              4.10           -               0.38                            -   

Sitting fees to Independent Directors/Non-executive Directors
- Amit Vardhaman Shah                 -          0.05                -                           0.05 
- Maneesh Taparia                 -          0.04                -                           0.04 
- Gautam Shah                 -          0.04                -                           0.04 

Annual Membership Fees (Income)
- Amit Vardhaman Shah                 -          0.14                -                           0.14 

Loans / Inter Corporate Deposits received
  - Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited                 -    1,989.15                -                    2,926.75 
  - Techno Property Developers Private Limited                 -      113.50                -                    1,666.50 
  - Techno Realtors Private Limited                 -      651.65                -                    2,858.90 
  - Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited                 -      786.15                -                              -   

2023 2022



  - Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta           275.03           -           112.50                            -   
  - Chetan Jashwant Mehta            25.00           -                  -                              -   

 Repayment of Loans / Inter corporate deposits received 
  - Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited                 -    1,147.15                -                    2,556.75 
  - Techno Property Developers Private Limited                 -      393.50                -                    1,839.25 
  - Techno Realtors Private Limited                 -      919.65                -                    2,715.90 
  - Neptune Resorts And Development Pvt Ltd                 -             -                  -                         11.50 
  - Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta              0.03           -             10.00                            -   

Outstanding Balances

 Loans / Inter corporate deposits from related parties 
  - Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited                 -    1,553.00                -                       711.00 
  - Techno Property Developers Private Limited                 -             -                  -                       280.00 
  - Techno Realtors Private Limited                 -        15.00                -                       283.00 
  - Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited                 -    2,020.40                -                    1,234.25 
  - Neptune Resorts And Development Pvt Ltd                 -             -                  -                              -   
  - Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta           387.50           -           112.50                            -   
  - Chetan Jashwant Mehta            25.00           -                  -                              -   

 Interest payable on inter corporate deposits 
  - Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited                 -      117.92                -                       342.03 
  - Techno Property Developers Private Limited                 -          8.84                -                         85.72 
  - Techno Realtors Private Limited                 -        17.57                -                         88.32 
  - Neptune Resorts And Development Pvt Ltd                 -             -                  -                       131.91 
  - Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited                 -      171.72                -                       588.33 
  - Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta            24.60           -               0.90                            -   
  - Chetan Jashwant Mehta              1.90           -                  -                              -   



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
(Formerly known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited")
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Note - 29 Employee benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year :

Post-employment defined contribution plans    257,156.00    296,157.00 
      Total 204,687.00  212,098.00  

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:

a) Amounts for the current period are as follows :

3/31/2023 3/31/2022

I Change in defined benefit obligation
Liability at the beginning of the year 1,307,301    1,454,969    
Expenses recognised in profit and loss account
- Interest cost 81,878         76,313         
- Current service cost 351,172       318,476       
- Past service cost -               -               
  Remeasurement (gains) / losses
      Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from
         i Change in demographic assumptions -               -               
         ii Change in financial assumptions (48,034)        (23,708)        
         iii Experience variance (74,257)        (31,446)        
Benefits paid (170,474)      (487,303)      
Disbursements from Plan Assets -               -               
Disbursements directly paid by the employer -               -               
Liability at the end of the year 1,447,586    1,307,301    

II Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year -               -               
  Expenses recognised in profit and loss Account
    - Return on plan assets -               -               
   Remeasurement gains / (losses)
      - Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets -               -               
Contributions -               -               
Benefits paid -               -               
Less : Acquisition/Divesture -               -               
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -               -               

III Actual return on plan assets
Return on plan assets -               -               
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets -               -               
Actual return on plan assets -               -               

IV Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 1,447,586    1,307,301    
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -               -               
(Surplus) / Deficit 1,447,586    1,307,301    
Effect Of Asset Ceiling -               -               
Current portion of the above 206,445       250,904       
Non Current portion of the above 1,241,141    1,056,397    

V.a Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Net Interest Expense 81,878         76,313         
Current service cost 351,172       318,476       
Past service cost 
Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 433,050       394,789       

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out 
as at March 31, 2023. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, 
were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method (PUC).
Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts 
recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

Gratuity

      Description

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, superannuation fund, Employees State Insurance Corporation and other 
retirement benefits for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage / fixed 
amount of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the respective fund set up by 
the government authority. 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death, permanent disablement and resignation in 
terms of provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,or as per the Company’s scheme whichever is more beneficial. 



V.b Included in other comprehensive income
Return on plan assets excluding net interest
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised (122,291)      (55,154)        
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in OCI (122,291)      (55,154)        

VI Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.40% 6.70%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets - -
Attrition rate:
   up to 30 years 15.00% 15.00%
   31-40 years 15.00% 15.00%
   41-50 years 15.00% 15.00%
   above 50 years 15.00% 15.00%
Salary Escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality rate

VII Weighted Average Duration of Defined Benefit Obligation
Duration (Years) 6.74             6.00             

VIII A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is shown as follows:

Discount rate

3/31/2023 3/31/2022
6.40% 15.171 13.738
8.40% 13.837 12.468

Salary increment rate
3/31/2023 3/31/2022

4.00% 13.950          12.567          
6.00% 15.038          13.618          

 
Withdrawal rate

3/31/2023 3/31/2022
14.00% 14.399          13.030          
16.00% 14.547          13.112          

IX Risk Exposure And Asset Liability Matching

Liability Risks
a) Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk-

b) Discount Rate Risk-

c) Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk -

Unfunded Plan Risk
This represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is an inherent risk here that the company may default on paying the 
benefits in adverse circumstances. Funding the plan removes volatility in company's financials and also benefit risk through return on 
the funds made available for the plan.

b) Impact of change in salary increase rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point

c) Impact of change in withdrawal rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point

Present value of obligation

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the present
value of obligation. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying (increasing/ decreasing) one parameter by 100 basis points (1%)  

a) Impact of change in discount rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point

Indian Assured lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Ultimate (IALM 

ult).

Present value of obligation

Present value of obligation

Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks,some of which are detailed hereunder, as companies take on uncertain long 
term obligations to make future benefit payments.

Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined 
benefit liabilities, the company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence companies 
are encouraged to adopt asset-liability management.

Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practise can have a 
significant impact on the defined benefit liabilities.

Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often 
result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases 
provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainities in estimating this increasing risk.
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Note - 30 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
A. Financial asset
i. Measured at amortised cost 
Security deposits 21.24                            21.24                         21.24                             21.24                            
Trade receivables * 96.18                            83.09                         96.18                             83.09                            
Cash and cash equivalent * 60.73                            56.95                         60.73                             56.95                            
Investment in Deposit * -                                -                            -                                 -                                

ii. Measured at fair value through profit and loss

Non-current investments
- Unquoted

Equity instruments 0.01                              0.01                           0.01                               0.01                              
Current investments

Mutual Funds 153.13                          204.44                       153.13                            204.44                          

B. Financial liability
i. Measured at amortised cost 
Borrowings 6,414.58                        4,785.72                    6,414.58                         4,785.72                        
Trade payables * 151.93                          167.39                       151.93                            167.39                          
Other financial liabilities 1,066.06                        1,898.15                    1,066.06                         1,898.15                        

  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair value hierarchy

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2023:

      Description
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

a) Financial assets measured at fair value
Non-current investments - Equity instruments -                                -                            0.01                                Discounted cash flows 
Non-current investments - Mutual Funds 153.13                          -                            -                                 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022:

      Description
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

a) Financial assets measured at fair value
Non-current investments - Equity instruments 0.01                                Discounted cash flows 
Non-current investments - Mutual Funds 204.44                          

Note - 31 Financial Risk Management

Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support company's 
operations. Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, security deposits and cash and cash equivalents, that derive directly from its operations.
In order to minimise any adverse effects on financial performance of the company, it has taken various measures. This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to
and how the entity manages the risk and impact of the same in the financial instruments.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit

Cash and cash 
equivalents, trade 
receivables, financial 
assets measured at 
amortised cost.

Ageing analysis, credit 
assessment

Assessment of customer 
credit worthiness at 
inception and through the 
credit period

Liquidity risk
Borrowings and other 
liabilities

Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Availibility of committed 
credit lines and 
borrrowing facilities

The company's risk management is carried out by management, under policies approved by the board of directors. Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close 
cooperation with the company's operating units. The board provides written principlesfor overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk and investment of 
excess liquidity.

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk in case of the company arises from cash and cash equivaslenrs, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.

Credit Risk Management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the company periodically assesses the reliability of customers, taking 
into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

(B) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining suffiecient cash and the availibility of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due.
Due to the dynamic nature of underlying businesses, company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
Management monitors olling forecasts of the company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is carried out in accordance with practice and 
limits set by the group.

Note - 32 Capital Management

The company's objectives when managing capital are to
(i) Safeguard it's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(ii) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis
of the following gearing ratio: Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total 'equity' (as shown in the balance sheet).

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are recognised in the financial 

Carrying value Fair value

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. In addition, 
the Company internally reviews valuations, including independent price validation for certain instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

      Description

Fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade payables approximates their carrying value. Accordingly, fair value hierarchy disclosures are not applicable.

Fair value measurement using Valuation technique 
used

Inputs used 

Fair value measurement using Valuation technique 
used

Inputs used 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company's assets and liabilities grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described in 
significant accounting policies - Note 2. Further, table describes the valuation techniques used, key inputs to valuations and quantitative information about 
significant unobservable inputs for fair value measurements. 

i. Fair value of security deposit (non-current) is estimated using a discounted cashflow model. The valuation requires management to make certain 
assumptions about interest rates, maturity period, credit risk, forecasted cash flows etc.

* The company has not disclosed the fair values of trade payables, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents because their carrying amounts are 
reasonable approximation of fair value.  

 Forecast cash flows, discount rate, 
maturity date etc. 

 Forecast cash flows, discount rate, 
maturity date etc. 

During the year ended 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022  there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value 



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 33 Segment reporting

Note - 34 Ratio Analysis

Sr. No. Ratio Numerator Denominator  Numerator Denominator 31 March 2023 Numerator Denominator 31 March 2022 Variation Explanation for more than 25% 
variation

1 Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities                 302.81                  7,988.96 0.04         277.33          7,275.24 0.04 -0.57% Not applicable

2 Debt-equity ratio Debt Net worth            11,442.25                 -6,728.35 -1.70      9,945.37         -5,715.38 -1.74 -2.27% Not applicable

3 Debt service coverage ratio Profit before exceptional 
items, tax and finance cost

Interest & Lease Payments + 
Principal Repayments

                184.31                 11,442.25 0.02        -213.01          9,945.37 -0.02 -175.21%

Improved ratio is on account of 
increase revenue which in turn has 
converted the losses before interest 
payments of last year to profits this 
year.

4 Return on equity ratio Profit after tax Average Shareholder’s Equity
            -1,014.20               -12,443.73 8.15%     -1,231.26       -10,200.05 12.07% -32.48% Improved ratio is on account of 

decrease in losses.

5 Inventory turnover ratio Sales Average Inventory

             1,475.37                       72.43 20.37         857.00               75.02 11.42 78.32%
Improved ratio is on account of 
increase in revenue from operations 
during the year.

6 Trade receivables turnover ratio Sales (billed to customer) Average Accounts Receivable

             1,475.37                       89.64 16.46         857.00               80.82 10.60 55.22%
Improved ratio is on account of 
increase in revenue from operations 
during the year.

7 Trade payables turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Trade Payables                 244.47                     159.66 1.53         159.77             126.78 1.26 21.50% Not applicable

8 Net capital turnover ratio Sales Average Working capital

             1,475.37                 -7,342.03 -0.20         857.00         -6,736.92 -0.13 57.97%
Improved ratio is on account of 
higher revenue from operations as 
compared to increase in average 
working capital employed.

9 Net profit ratio Profit After Tax Sales
               -996.99                  1,475.37 -67.58%     -1,231.26             857.00 -143.67% -52.96%

Improved ratio is on account of 
increase in revenue from operations 
during the year.

10 Return on capital employed Earning Before Interest & Tax Capital Employed

                287.97                 -6,728.35 -4.28%        -118.72         -5,715.38 2.08% -306.04%

Improved ratio is on account of 
increase revenue which in turn has 
converted the losses before interest 
payments of last year to profits this 
year.

11 Return on investment Income from Investments Investment
- Mutual Funds                     9.71                     153.13 6.34%           11.82             204.44 5.78% 9.72% Not applicable
- Fixed Deposits 1.93                    20.00                      9.67% 1.80            20.00              9.00% 7.52% Not applicable

The company is engaged in the business of club and sports complex having sports facilities and other hospitality service and operates in the single geographical location. Accordingly, there is no reportable business or geographical segment and the financial statement are 
reflective of the information required by the IND AS – 108, “ Operating Segment ”.



Note 35 - Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Note 36 - Going Concern Assumption

Note - 37 Other Notes

i. Details of Benami Property

 The Company does not own any benami property neither any proceedings are initiated or pending against theCompany under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988.

ii. Borrowings secured against current assets

The Company does not have any fund based borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

iii. Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

iv. Relationship with Struck off Companies

As per the information available with the Company, the Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

v. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) nor has it received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party).

vi. Details of Crypto-Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto-Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

vii. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There is no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Note - 38

 The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified to correspond with current year’s classification/ disclosure.

The financial statements of Emerald Leisures Limited were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 30, 2023.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For P G BHAGWAT LLP EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants

sd/-                                                      sd/- sd/- sd/-
Shriniwas Shreeram Gadgil Nikhil Mehta Rajesh Loya Vedashri Chaudhari

Partner CEO & Director CFO & Director Company Secretary

Membership No. 120570
(DIN:00252482) (DIN:00252470) Membership No.: 

A55742
UDIN : 23120570BGUEGD5299
Place : Mumbai                                            Place : Mumbai                                            
Date :  30/05/2023 Date :  30/05/2023

The Company had issued non-cumulative redeemable preference shares amounting to Rs. 4000.00 Lakhs and Rs. 1000 Lakhs during the financial year 2017-18 and 2019-20 respectively. The Company did not account for the fair value gain on initial recognition and unwinding 
of interest cost associated with the issuance of these non-cumulative redeemable preference shares. During the current financial year, the Company has restated the opening numbers as at April 01, 2021 and has appropriately accounted the fair value gain on initial recognition 
and unwinding of interest cost on these redeemable preference shares amounting to Rs. 3072. 28 lakhs and Rs. 694. 06 lakhs respectively. Further, the Company, during the year has also restated the results for the year ended March 31, 2022 along with quarter ended March 
31, 2022 and December 31, 2022 on account of recognition of proportionate unwinding of interest cost related to these redeemable preference shares of Rs. 262.18 lakhs, Rs. 65.54 lakhs and Rs. 72.10 lakhs respectively.

Due to historical financial performance of the Company, the management performed detailed going concern assessment and also assessed whether there is any requirement for impairment of non financial assets of the Company as on March 31, 2023 as per Ind AS 36 – 
Impairment of Assets. For this purpose, the management obtained fair valuation report of the business for the purpose of computation of recoverable value of Cash Generating Unit (CGU) as per the requirement of Ind AS 36. Since the recoverable value of CGU is higher than 
the carrying cost, the management believes that there is no requirement for impairment of non current financial assets. Further based on the evaluation of external and internal information available with the Company, future business projections prepared, no instances of default 
in paying current liabilities (including repayment of borrowings from banks and interest thereon), continued financial support from the promoters till March 31, 2023 along with the letter of support received from the promoters as on March 31, 2023, the management believes that 
the company will be able to meet its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet (i.e. March 31, 2023) as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date and no material uncertainty exists about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
Therefore considering aforementioned factors, the management believes that there is no requirement for impairment of non financial assets as on March 31, 2023 and therefore no material adjustment is required to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.
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